
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTICE OF AND AGENDA FOR A REGULAR MEETING  

TO BE HELD BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

DATE:    TUESDAY, AUGUST 24, 2021 

TIME:    5:30 PM 

PLACE:    PHARR CITY HALL  

2nd FLOOR CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS 

    118 SOUTH CAGE BLVD. 

    PHARR, TEXAS 78577     

 

PRESIDING: S. DAVID DEANDA, JR, CHAIRMAN 
 

                              An electronic copy of the agenda packet can be obtained at www.hcrma.net  
 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
INVOCATION 
 
CALL TO ORDER AND ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM FOR A REGULAR MEETING 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

1. REPORTS 
 
A. Report on Program Manager Activity for 365 Tollway Project and IBTC Environmental Clearance Document 

– Eric Davila, HCRMA. 

B. Report on 365 Tollway Project Financing Activities – Richard Ramirez, Hilltop Securities. 

 
2. CONSENT AGENDA (All matters  listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Governing 

Body and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no  separate discussion of  these  items; however,  if 
discussion is desired, that item(s) will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
The Governing Body may also elect to go into Executive Session on any item on this agenda, whether or not 
such  item(s) are posted as an Executive Session  Item, at any  time during  the meeting when authorized by 
provisions of the Open Public Meeting Act.) 
 
A. Approval of Minutes for the Regular Meeting held July 27, 2021. 

B. Approval of Project & General Expense Report for the period from July 8, 2021 to August 6, 2021. 

C. Approval of Financial Reports for July 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3. REGULAR AGENDA  
 
A. Resolution 2021‐32 – Approval of Work Authorization 9 to the Professional Service Agreement with C&M 

Associates, Inc. for a Traffic and Revenue Bring‐Down Letter for the 365 Tollway Project Financing. 
B. Resolution 2021‐33 – Approval of Contract Amendment 10 to the Professional Service Agreement with 

C&M Associates to increase the maximum payable amount for Work Authorization Number 9. 
C. Resolution 2021‐34 – Approval of the 365 Tollway Wetland Mitigation Conservation Easement in Favor of 

the Valley Land Fund.  
 
 

 
4. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 

 
A. None. 

 

5. TABLED ITEMS 
 
A. None. 

 
6. EXECUTIVE SESSION, CHAPTER 551, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, SECTION 551.071 (CONSULTATION WITH 

ATTORNEY), SECTION 551.072  (DELIBERATION OF REAL PROPERTY), AND SECTION 551.074  (PERSONNEL 
MATTERS)  

 
A. Consultation with Attorney on  legal  issues pertaining  to  the acquisition,  including  the use of Eminent 

Domain, for property required to complete the project alignments of the 365 Tollway Project (Sections 
551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.). 

B. Consultation with Attorney  on  personnel matters  related  annual  evaluation  of  the  Executive Director 
(551.074 T.G.C.) 

C. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to an Interlocal Cooperative Agreement with the City 
of Mission to provide Right of Way Acquisition Services (Section 551.071 T.G.C.) 

D. Consultation with Attorney on  legal  issues pertaining  to  the Texas Department of Transportation State 
Infrastructure Bank Loan for the 365 Tollway Project (Section 551.071 T.G.C.)  

E. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to Professional Service Agreements for Engineering, 
Surveying and Environmental Services (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 

F. Consultation with Attorney on  legal  issues pertaining  to  the voluntary acquisition of  real property  for 
various  parcels  for  the  365  Tollway  Project  and  International  Bridge  Trade  Corridor  Project  (Sections 
551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.). 

G. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the Environmental Clearance Document for the 
International Bridge Trade Corridor Project (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 

H. Consultation with Attorney on  legal  issues pertaining  to  the  issuance of one or more Series of Hidalgo 
County Regional Mobility Authority bonds and related agreements and provisions relating to the subject 
(Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 

I. Consultation with Attorney on personnel matters  related  to  the COVID‐19 pandemic  (Section 551.074 
T.G.C.). 
 

  ADJOURNMENT OF REGULAR MEETING 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

C E R T I F I C A T I O N 

 

I,  the Undersigned Authority, do hereby certify  that  the attached agenda of  the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority Board of Directors is a true and correct copy and that I posted a true and correct copy of said notice on the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Web Page (www.hcrma.net) and the bulletin board in the Hidalgo County 
Court House  (100 North Closner, Edinburg, Texas 78539), a place convenient and readily accessible to  the general 
public at all times, and said Notice was posted on the  18th   day of August 2021 at 5:00 pm and will remain so posted 
continuously for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting in accordance with Chapter 551 of the 
Texas Government Code. 
                                           Maria E. Alaniz         
                Administrative Assistant 

 
Note:  If you are an individual with Limited English Proficiency (LEP) and need language assistance or require special 
accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act, please contact Maria E. Alaniz at 956‐402‐4762 at least 
96 hours before the meeting. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT POLICY 

Public  Comment  Policy:  “At  the  beginning  of  each  HCRMA  meeting,  the  HCRMA  will  allow  for  an  open  public 

forum/comment period. This comment period shall not exceed one‐half (1/2) hour in length and each speaker will be 

allowed a maximum of three (3) minutes to speak.  Speakers addressing the Board through a translator will be allowed 

a maximum of six (6) minutes.   

 

All  individuals desiring to address the HCRMA must be signed up to do so, prior to the open comment period. For 

meetings being held by  telephonic or videoconference,  individuals may contact Maria. E. Alaniz at  (956) 402‐4762 

before 5:00 pm day of the meeting.  

  

 The purpose of this comment period is to provide the public an opportunity to address issues or topics that are under 

the jurisdiction of the HCRMA. For issues or topics which are not otherwise part of the posted agenda for the meeting, 

HCRMA members may direct staff to investigate the issue or topic further. No action or discussion shall be taken on 

issues or topics which are not part of the posted agenda for the meeting. Members of the public may be recognized 

on posted agenda  items deemed appropriate by  the Chairman as  these  items are considered, and  the  same  time 

limitations applies.” 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 1A 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

         
AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

 
 

                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                  1A                                
PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED        08/11/2021                                                               
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE     08/24/2021     
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  REPORT ON PROGRAM MANAGER ACTIVITY FOR 365 TOLLWAY PROJECT 

AND IBTC ENVIRONMENTAL CLEARANCE DOCUMENT                                        
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Report on 365 Tollway and IBTC Projects                                           
   
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Report only.                            .            
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X_  None 
 
11.  Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:   X    Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X_  None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved        _  None 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

11
h

tt
p

:/
/w

w
w

.h
c

rm
a

.n
e

t

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F
 D

IR
E
C

TO
R

S
 M

E
E
TI

N
G

 

F
O

R
 A

U
G

U
S
T 

2
0

2
1

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 H

C
R

M
A

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti
v

it
y

C
h

ie
f 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

E
n

g
in

e
e

r 
–

E
ri

c
 D

a
v

il
a

, 
P

E
, 
P

M
P

, 
C

C
M

H
C

R
M

A
 B

o
a

rd
 o

f 
D

ir
e

c
to

rs

S
. 

D
a
v
id

 D
e

a
n

d
a

, 
J

r.
, 

C
h

a
ir

m
a

n

F
o

r
re

s
t 

R
u

n
n

e
ls

, 
V

ic
e

-C
h

a
ir

m
a

n

E
z
e

q
u

ie
l 
R

e
y
n

a
, 
J

r.
, 

S
e

c
re

ta
r
y
/T

re
a

s
u

re
r

A
lo

n
z
o

 C
a

n
tu

, 
D

ir
e

c
to

r

P
a

u
l 
S

. 
M

o
x

le
y
, 
D

ir
e

c
to

r

F
ra

n
c

is
c

o
 “

F
ra

n
k

”
 P

a
rd

o
, 

D
ir

e
c

to
r

J
o

a
q

u
in

 S
p

a
m

e
r,

 D
ir

e
c

to
r 

H
C

R
M

A
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti

v
e

 S
ta

ff

P
il
a

r 
R

o
d

ri
g

u
e

z
, 
P

E
, 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 D
ir

e
c

to
r

E
ri

c
 D

a
v
il
a

, 
P

E
, 
P

M
P
, 

C
C

M
, 

C
h

ie
f 

D
e
v
. 

E
n

g
.

R
a

m
o

n
 N

a
v
a

r
ro

 I
V
, 

P
E

, 
C

F
M

, 
C

h
ie

f 
C

o
n

s
tr

. 
E

n
g

.

C
e

li
a

 G
a

o
n

a
, 
C

IA
, 

C
h

ie
f 

A
u

d
it

o
r/

C
o

m
p

li
a

n
c

e
 O

fc
r.

J
o

s
e

 C
a

s
ti

ll
o
, 

C
h

ie
f 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
O

fc
r.

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
E

n
g

in
e

e
ri

n
g

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
t

H
D

R
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

, 
IN

C
. 



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

2
h

tt
p

:/
/w

w
w

.h
c

rm
a

.n
e

t


O

V
E
R

V
IE

W

❑
3

6
5

 T
O

LL
 P

ro
je

c
t 

O
v

e
rv

ie
w

 

❑
IB

TC
 P

ro
je

c
t 

O
v

e
rv

ie
w

❑
O

v
e

rw
e

ig
h

t 
P

e
rm

it
 S

u
m

m
a

ry

❑
C

o
n

st
ru

c
ti
o

n
 E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

s 
U

p
d

a
te

M
IS

S
IO

N
 S

TA
TE

M
E
N

T:

“
To

 p
ro

v
id

e
 o

u
r 

c
u

st
o

m
e

rs
 

w
it
h

 a
 r

a
p

id
 a

n
d

 r
e

lia
b

le
 

a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 s
a

fe
 a

n
d

 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

m
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
, 
g

o
o

d
s 

a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s”



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

H
C

R
M

A
S
TR

A
TE

G
IC

 P
LA

N

3

D
E
V

E
LO

P
 T

H
E
 

IN
F
R

A
S
TR

U
C

TU
R

E
 T

O
 

S
E
R

V
E
 A

 P
O

P
U

LA
TI

O
N

O
F
 A

P
P

R
O

X
IM

A
TE

LY
 

8
0

0
,0

0
0
 R

E
S
ID

E
N

TS

A
N

D

5
 I

N
TE

R
N

A
TI

O
N

A
L

P
O

R
TS

 O
F
 E

N
TR

Y

P
h

a
rr

-R
e
y
n

o
s
a
 P

O
E

A
n

z
a
ld

u
a
s
 P

O
E

H
id

a
lg

o
 P

O
E

D
o

n
n

a
-R

io
 B

ra
v

o
 P

O
E

I-
6

9
 

C
o

n
n

e
c

to
r



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

4


P

O
S
T

2
0

2
1

 U
TP

 A
P

P
R

O
V

A
L

❑
A

p
p

ro
v

a
l 
o

f 
2
0
2
1
 U

TP
 (

A
u

g
 2

0
2
0
)

▪
3

6
5

 T
o

ll:
 g

a
p

-f
u

n
d

e
d

 c
o

n
st

ru
c

ti
o

n
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 w

a
s 

b
u

d
g

e
te

d
 in

 2
0

2
1

 U
TP

 U
p

d
a

te
 in

 1
2

/2
0

2
0

. 
O

n
 

0
6

/2
0

2
1

 a
 2

n
d

F
A

A
 w

a
s 

g
ra

n
te

d
 t

o
 a

ss
ig

n
 t

h
e

 
g

a
p

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 c
o

n
ti
n

g
e

n
t 

u
p

o
n

 s
u

c
c

e
ss

fu
l 

c
o

n
tr

a
c

t 
e

x
e

c
u

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
a

le
 o

f 
to

ll 
re

v
e

n
u

e
 

b
o

n
d

s.
 

▪
IB

TC
: 
fu

n
d

s 
lis

te
d

 u
n

d
e

r 
C

a
t 

1
2

 /
 T

B
D

 n
e

e
d

s 
re

v
is

e
d

 P
D

A
 a

n
d

 d
ir
e

c
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 T
x
D

O
T 

a
s 

to
 

w
h

e
th

e
r 
a

p
p

ro
v

e
d

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 c
a

n
 b

e
 u

se
d

 f
o

r 
a

d
v

a
n

c
e

d
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 (

e
.g

. 
d

e
si

g
n

, 
R

O
W

, 
a

n
d

/o
r 

u
ti
lit

y
) 

w
o

rk
.

❑
W

h
a

t’
s 

in
 t

h
e

 R
G

V
M

P
O

 (
Lo

c
a

l 
P

la
n

)

▪
3

6
5

 T
o

ll 
P

ro
je

c
t 

(T
IP

 /
 M

TP
) 

th
ru

 c
o

n
st

ru
c

ti
o

n

▪
IB

TC
 P

ro
je

c
t 

(T
IP

 /
 M

TP
) 

th
ru

 d
e

si
g

n
 (

p
e

n
d

in
g

 
fu

n
d

in
g

 c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
st

ru
c

ti
o

n
)

S
Y

S
TE

M
 

W
ID

E
P

D
A

–
P

ro
je

ct
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t

FA
A
–

F
in

an
ci

al
 A

ss
is

ta
nc

e 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t

T
IP

–
T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

ro
gr

am
 (

S
ho

rt
 

ra
ng

e)

M
T

P
–

M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 

T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

P
la

n 
(L

on
g 

R
an

ge
)



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

3
6

5
 T

O
LL

 S
E
G

S
. 

1
 &

 2
 L

IM
IT

S
 F

R
O

M
 F

M
 3

9
6
 /

 A
N

Z
. 
H

W
Y

. 

TO
 U

S
 2

8
1
 /

 B
S
IF

 C
O

N
N

E
C

TO
R

 (
3
6

5
 S

E
G

. 
3
)

3
6

5
 T

O
LL

 S
E
G

. 
4
 L

IM
IT

S
 F

R
O

M
 F

M
 1

0
1
6

 /
 C

O
N

W
A

Y
 A

V
E
 

TO
 F

M
 3

9
6
 /

 A
N

Z
. 
H

W
Y

. 
(F

U
TU

R
E
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
)

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

5

M
A

J
O

R
 M

IL
E
S
TO

N
E
S
:

N
E
P

A
 C

LE
A

R
A

N
C

E
 

0
7

/0
3

/2
0

1
5

9
8

%
 R

O
W

 A
C

Q
U

IR
E
D

P
H

 1
: 

3
6

5
 S

E
G

. 
3

 –
LE

T:
 0

8
/2

0
1

5

C
O

M
P

LE
TE

D

P
H

 2
: 

3
6
5

 T
O

LL
 

S
E
G

S
. 
1

 &
 2

 –
R

E
-L

E
T:

 2
0

2
1



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

6


S

C
H

E
D

U
LE

:
❑

1
2

/2
0

2
1

, 
Tx

D
O

T 
p

ro
c

e
ss

e
d

 t
h

e
 F

e
d

e
ra

l P
ro

je
c

t 
A

u
th

o
ri
za

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
(F

P
A

A
) 

M
o

d
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 g
a

p
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 o

n
 3

6
5

 
To

llw
a

y
,

❑
0

3
/2

0
2
1

, 
Tx

D
O

T 
a

m
e

n
d

e
d

 t
h

e
 F

e
d

e
ra

l P
ro

je
c

t 
A

u
th

o
ri
za

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
(F

P
A

A
) 

w
it
h

 F
H

W
A

, 

❑
0
6

/2
0
2
1

, 
TT

C
 t

o
 r

e
a

d
 a

 M
in

u
te

 O
rd

e
r 

(M
.O

.)
 f

o
r 

a
 2

n
d

F
A

A
 t

o
 

in
c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 t

h
e

 g
a

p
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 in

to
 t

h
e

 p
ro

je
c

t,
 

❑
E
a

rl
y

 0
8

/2
0

2
1
, 
Tx

D
O

T 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 “

re
le

a
se

 t
o

 a
d

v
e

rt
is

e
”
 n

o
ti
c

e
 t

o
 

H
C

R
M

A
, 

❑
0

8
/0

8
/2

0
2
1

 -
1

0
/1

3
/2

0
2

1
, 
H

C
R

M
A

 t
o

 a
d

v
e

rt
is

e
 t

h
e

 3
6

5
 T

o
ll 

(6
6

 d
a

y
s)

, 
h

o
ld

 p
re

b
id

 0
8

/3
1

/2
0
2
1
, 
a

n
d

 o
p

e
n

 b
id

s 
1

0
/1

3
/2

0
2
1
,

❑
1
0

/1
9
/2

0
2
1

, 
H

C
R

M
A

 A
p

p
ro

v
e

s 
A

w
a

rd
 o

f 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
t,

❑
1

0
/2

0
/2

0
2
1

 -
1

0
/2

2
/2

0
2

1
, 
H

C
R

M
A

 m
e

e
ts

 w
it
h

 r
a

ti
n

g
 a

g
e

n
c

ie
s,

 p
ri
c

e
s 

b
o

n
d

s,

❑
1

2
/0

1
/2

0
2
1

, 
R

e
c

e
iv

e
 T

x
D

O
T 

P
H

R
/C

S
T 

c
o

n
c

u
rr

e
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 a
w

a
rd

 o
f 

c
o

n
tr

a
c

t,

❑
1
2

/1
4
/2

0
2
1

, 
H

C
R

M
A

 c
lo

se
s 

to
ll 

re
v

e
n

u
e

 b
o

n
d

s,

❑
0

1
/2

0
2
2

, 
C

o
m

m
e

n
c

e
 4

2
-m

o
n

th
 c

o
n

st
ru

c
ti
o

n
, 

a
n

d
 

❑
0

7
/2

0
2
5

, 
O

p
e

n
 t

o
 t

ra
ff

ic
.

3
6

5
 

TO
LL



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

7

M
A

J
O

R
 M

IL
E
S
TO

N
E
S
:

O
B

TA
IN

E
D

 E
A

 E
N

V

C
LA

S
S
IF

.:
 1

1
/2

0
1

7

E
S
T.

 N
E
P

A
 C

LE
A

R
A

N
C

E
: 

E
A

R
LY

 F
A

LL
 2

0
2

1

E
S
T.

 O
P

E
N

: 
E
A

R
LY

 2
0

2
6

7

IB
TC

 S
E
G

S
. 

1
 –

3
: 
F
R

O
M

 T
H

E
 

IN
TE

R
C

H
A

N
G

E
 W

IT
H

 3
6

5
 T

O
LL

 A
N

D
 

F
M

 4
9

3
 T

O
 I
N

TE
R

S
TA

TE
 2

IB
T

C



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

8


IB

TC
 S

C
H

E
D

U
LE

IB
TC

20
21

20
22

20
23

En
vi

ro
n

m
e

n
ta

l (
O

n
go

in
g)

Su
rv

e
ys

 (
65

%
)

R
O

W
 T

it
le

 R
e

se
ar

ch
 /

 A
p

p
ra

is
al

s

R
O

W
 A

cq
u

is
it

io
n

 (
5%

 A
d

v.
 A

cq
.)

P
la

n
s,

 S
p

e
cs

.,
 &

 E
st

im
at

e
s 

(5
0%

)

U
ti

li
ty

 C
o

o
rd

 /
 R

e
lo

ca
ti

o
n

C
o

n
st

r.
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
Le

tt
in

g 
P

h
as

e

C
o

n
st

r.
 A

w
ar

d
 /

 C
o

m
m

e
n

ce

Fe
b

In
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

ri
d

g
e

 T
ra

d
e

 C
o

rr
id

o
r 

(I
B

T
C

) 
(C

S
J

: 
0

9
2

1
-0

2
-1

4
2

)

(F
ro

m
 t

h
e
 I
n
te

rc
h
a
n
g
e
 w

it
h
 3

6
5
 T

o
ll 

a
n
d
 F

M
 4

9
3
 t

o
 I
n
te

rs
ta

te
 2

)

P
ro

je
ct

 M
il

e
st

o
n

e
s

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

A
p

r
M

ay
Ju

n
Ju

l
A

u
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
o

v
D

e
c

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

A
p

r
M

ay
Ju

n
Ju

l
A

u
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
o

v
D

e
c

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

 F
R

O
M

 2
02

3-
20

25

M
ar

A
p

r
M

ay
Ju

n
Ju

l
A

u
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
o

v
D

e
c

Ja
n



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

9


A

D
V

A
N

C
E

P
LA

N
N

IN
G

❑
E
n

v
.:
 C

la
ss

if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 L

e
tt

e
r 

a
n

d
 S

c
o

p
in

g
 T

o
o

lk
it
 S

u
b

m
it
te

d
 A

u
g

 2
0

1
7

❑
H

e
ld

 I
B

TC
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
K

ic
k
 o

ff
 w

it
h

 T
x
D

O
T 

P
H

R
 /

 E
N

V
 A

p
ri
l 6

, 
2
0

1
8

. 

❑
V

R
F
 U

TP
 M

a
tc

h
in

g
 F

u
n

d
s 

re
q

u
e

st
 p

ro
c

e
ss

e
d

 a
t 

th
e

 H
C

M
P

O
—

p
e

n
d

in
g

 a
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 b

y
 

Tx
D

O
T 

a
t 

S
ta

te
 L

e
v
e

l. 

❑
A

ll 
e

n
v
. 

fi
e

ld
w

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

: 
W

a
te

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 U

S
 a

n
d

 A
rc

h
e

o
lo

g
ic

a
l t

re
n

c
h

in
g

—
In

te
rn

a
l 

R
O

E
 e

ff
o

rt
s 

w
e

re
 i
n

st
ru

m
e

n
ta

l 
to

 a
c

c
e

le
ra

ti
n

g
 t

h
is

 w
o

rk
. 

❑
M

e
e

ti
n

g
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h

 E
P

A
/T

C
E
Q

/T
x
D

O
T 

to
 d

is
c

u
ss

 D
o

n
n

a
 R

e
se

rv
o

ir
 s

it
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 H

a
zm

a
t 

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 N

E
P

A
 D

o
c

u
m

e
n

t 
O

c
t 

2
0

1
8

.

❑
P

u
b

lic
 M

e
e

ti
n

g
 t

o
o

k
 p

la
c

e
 a

t 
D

o
n

n
a

 H
ig

h
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
M

a
rc

h
 2

9
, 

2
0

1
9

.

❑
A

ll 
m

a
jo

r 
m

ile
st

o
n

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

s 
su

b
m

it
te

d
 a

n
d

 u
n

d
e

rg
o

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
s:

 P
ro

je
c

t 
D

e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
, 

H
a

zm
a

t,
 H

is
to

ri
c

 R
e

so
u

rc
e

s,
 P

u
b

lic
 M

e
e

ti
n

g
 S

u
m

m
a

ry
 R

e
p

o
rt

, 
W

a
te

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 U

S
, 

a
n

d
 

A
rc

h
a

e
o

lo
g

ic
a

l R
e

so
u

rc
e

s.
  

❑
P

e
n

d
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 /

 a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
fr

o
m

 T
x
D

O
T 

o
n

: 
N

o
is

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

, 
A

rc
h

a
e

o
lo

g
ic

a
l M

it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 

P
la

n
, 

a
n

d
 C

IC
 R

e
p

o
rt

 –
so

 t
h

a
t 

fi
n

a
l d

o
c

u
m

e
n

t 
c

a
n

 b
e

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
. 

  


O

TH
E
R
: 

❑
S
u

rv
e

y
s 

(6
5

%
 c

o
m

p
le

te
) 

–
a

n
ti
c

ip
a

te
 n

e
w

 s
u

rv
e

y
 p

o
o

l 
p

ro
c

u
re

m
e

n
t 

o
n

c
e

 T
x
D

O
T 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

s 
n

e
w

 f
e

d
e

ra
liz

e
d

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c

e
d

u
re

s 
b

y
 e

n
d

 o
f 

F
a

ll 
2
0

1
9

. 
  

❑
R

O
W

 A
c

q
u

is
it
io

n
 (

5
%

 c
o

m
p

le
te

) 

❑
U

ti
lit

y
 R

e
lo

. 
(S

U
E
 1

0
0
%

, 
c

o
o

rd
in

a
ti
o

n
 in

it
ia

te
d

, 
O

v
e

ra
ll 

2
0

%
) 

❑
D

e
si

g
n

 (
P

S
&

E
, 

5
0

%
 c

o
m

p
le

te
):

 O
n

 H
o

ld

IB
TC



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

1
0

D
E
S
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
:


P

R
O

J
E
C

T 
LE

N
G

TH
 ~

2
7

 M
IL

E
S
 


F
R

O
M

 I
-6

9
C

 I
N

 H
ID

A
LG

O
 C

O
U

N
TY

 T
O

 
I6

9
-E

 I
N

 C
A

M
E
R

O
N

 C
O

U
N

TY


K

E
Y

 P
A

R
A

LL
E
L 

C
O

R
R

ID
O

R
 T

O
 I

-2
 W

IT
H

 
IM

P
O

R
TA

N
C

E
 T

O
 M

O
B

IL
IT

Y
 P

R
O

J
E
C

TS
 

B
Y

 T
X

D
O

T,
 C

C
R

M
A

 A
N

D
 H

C
R

M
A


TX

D
O

T 
C

O
M

M
IT

TE
D

 S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

TA
L 

D
E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T 
A

U
TH

O
R

IT
Y

 F
U

N
D

S
 F

O
R

 
TH

E
 E

N
TI

R
E
 2

7
 M

IL
E
 C

O
R

R
ID

O
R

 A
S
 A

N
 

E
X

P
R

E
S
S
W

A
Y

 F
A

C
IL

IT
Y

.


TX

D
O

T 
H

A
S
 C

O
M

M
IT

TE
D

 T
O

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

 
TH

E
 D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T 
O

F
 T

H
E
 

S
C

H
E
M

A
TI

C
 D

E
S
IG

N
 A

N
D

 
E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E
N

TA
L 

D
O

C
U

M
E
N

TS
.


F
E
A

S
IB

IL
IT

Y
 S

TU
D

IE
S
 K

IC
K

E
D

 O
F
F 

W
IT

H
 

A
 S

TA
K

E
H

O
LD

E
R

 M
E
E
TI

N
G

 O
C

T 
2
0

1
9

. 


P

U
B

LI
C

 M
E
E
TI

N
G

 O
N

 F
E
A

S
IB

IL
IT

Y
 

S
TU

D
IE

S
 H

E
LD

 D
E
C

E
M

B
E
R

 2
0

1
9

. 

(C
O

LL
A

B
O

R
A

TI
O

N
 W

/ 
TX

D
O

T,
 

C
C

R
M

A
, 

A
N

D
 H

C
R

M
A

)

I-
6

9
 C

o
n

n
e

c
to

r
I-

6
9

 C
o

n
n

e
c

to
r

C
o

ll
a

b
o

ra
ti

o
n



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

1
1

D
E
S
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
:


C

O
M

B
IN

E
D

 P
R

O
J
E
C

T 
LE

N
G

TH
:

3
8
 M

IL
E
S
 F

R
O

M
 F

M
 1

0
1
6
 /

 C
O

N
W

A
Y

 A
V

E
 

(M
IS

S
IO

N
/M

A
D

E
R

O
) 

TO
 I
-6

9
C

 (
N

O
R

TH
 E

D
IN

B
U

R
G

)


LI

K
E
LY

 T
O

 B
E
 C

LA
S
S
IF

IE
D

 A
S
 A

N
 E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

TA
L 

IM
P

A
C

T 
S
TA

TE
M

E
N

T 
(E

IS
) 

N
E
P

A
D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T 
(3

6
 T

O
 4

8
 

M
O

N
TH

S
)—

TO
 B

E
 E

N
G

A
G

E
D

 A
F
TE

R
 I

B
TC

E
N

V
.


P

O
TE

N
TI

A
L 

F
O

R
 C

LA
S
S
 I

 R
A

IL
 W

IT
H

IN
 T

H
E
 R

O
W

 
P

E
N

D
IN

G
 D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

TS
 F

O
R

 R
A

IL
 C

R
O

S
S
IN

G
 I

N
 

M
IS

S
IO

N
 A

R
E
A

. 


IN

TE
R

LO
C

A
L 

A
G

R
E
E
M

E
N

T 
IN

 P
LA

C
E
 W

IT
H

 C
IT

Y
 O

F
 

M
IS

S
IO

N
 F

O
R

 H
C

R
M

A
’S

 A
S
S
IS

TA
N

C
E
 W

IT
H

 
E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E
N

TA
L 

C
LE

A
R

A
N

C
E
 E

F
F
O

R
TS

.


M

A
R

C
H

 2
0
2
0
 -

H
E
LD

 A
N

 I
LA

 K
IC

K
 O

F
F
 M

E
E
TI

N
G

 W
IT

H
 

TH
E
 C

IT
Y

 O
F
 M

IS
S
IO

N
 T

O
 B

E
G

IN
 A

LI
G

N
IN

G
 E

N
V

. 
C

LE
A

R
A

N
C

E
 E

F
F
O

R
TS

 W
IT

H
 T

H
E
 C

IT
Y

’S
 I
N

TE
N

D
E
D

 
O

V
E
R

A
LL

 P
R

O
J
E
C

T 
P

LA
N

. 


M

A
Y

 2
0
2
0
 –

H
C

R
M

A
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
D

 C
IT

Y
 O

F
 M

IS
S
IO

N
 W

 
D

R
A

F
T 

S
C

O
P

E
S
 F

O
R

 E
N

V
 /

 T
R

A
F
F
IC

 E
N

G
.

F
O

R
 T

H
E
IR

 
P

R
O

P
O

S
E
D

 E
N

V
. 
C

LE
A

R
A

N
C

E
 E

F
F
O

R
TS

 A
T 

TH
E
 

P
R

O
P

O
S
E
D

 R
A

IL
 B

R
ID

G
E
 C

R
O

S
S
IN

G
. 


S
E
P

TE
M

B
E
R

 2
0

2
0

 –
TX

D
O

T 
A

P
P

R
O

V
E
D

 C
IT

Y
 O

F
 

M
IS

S
IO

N
 P

R
O

C
U

R
E
M

E
N

T 
R

U
LE

S
 T

O
 A

LI
G

N
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E
 

“
F
E
D

E
R

A
L 

P
R

O
C

E
S
S
”

S
E
C

TI
O

N
 A

(W
E
S
T)

 /
 S

E
C

TI
O

N
 C

*C
O

M
P

LI
M

E
N

TS
 P

R
O

P
O

S
E
D

 M
IS

S
IO

N
/M

A
D

E
R

O
-R

E
Y

N
O

S
A

 

IN
TE

R
N

A
TI

O
N

A
L 

B
O

R
D

E
R

 C
R

O
S
S
IN

G
 (

B
Y

 O
TH

E
R

S
)

W
E

S
T

 L
O

O
P

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
Ty

p
ic

a
l 
S
e

c
ti
o

n
 

w
/ 

R
o

a
d

w
a

y
 &

 R
a

il
 f
o

r 
W

e
st

 L
o

o
p

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

1
2



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

1
3


O

V
E
R

W
E
IG

H
T

R
E
P

O
R

T
F
O

R
P

E
R

IO
D

:

J
A

N
1
, 
2
0
1
4
 –

J
U

LY
3
1
, 
2
0
2
1

O
W

To
ta

l 
P

e
rm

it
s 

Is
su

e
d

:
2

1
0

,0
1

7

To
ta

l 
A

m
o

u
n

t 
C

o
ll
e

c
te

d
:

3
3

,5
3

5
,0

8
4

$
  
 

 ■
 C

o
n

v
e

n
ie

n
c

e
 F

e
e

s:
6

9
5

,4
8

4
$

  
  
  
  

 ■
 T

o
ta

l 
P

e
rm

it
 F

e
e

s:
3

2
,8

3
9

,6
0

0
$

  
 

–
 P

ro
 M

ile
s:

6
3

0
,0

5
1

$
  
  
  
 

–
 T

x
D

O
T:

2
7

,9
1

3
,6

6
0

$
  

–
 H

C
R

M
A

:
4

,2
9

5
,8

8
9

$
  
  



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

1
4


O

V
E
R

W
E
IG

H
T

R
E
P

O
R

T
F
O

R
P

E
R

IO
D

:

J
A

N
1
, 
2
0
2
1
 –

J
U

LY
3
1
, 
2
0
2
1

O
W

To
ta

l 
P

e
rm

it
s 

Is
su

e
d

:
2

5
,3

3
8

To
ta

l 
A

m
o

u
n

t 
C

o
ll
e

c
te

d
:

5
,1

3
0

,9
2

4
$

  
  
 

 ■
 C

o
n

v
e

n
ie

n
c

e
 F

e
e

s:
6

3
,3

2
4

$
  
  
  
  
  
 

 ■
 T

o
ta

l 
P

e
rm

it
 F

e
e

s:
5

,0
6

7
,6

0
0

$
  
  
 

–
 P

ro
 M

ile
s:

7
6

,0
1

4
$

  
  
  
  
 

–
 T

x
D

O
T:

4
,3

0
7

,4
6

0
$

  
  

–
 H

C
R

M
A

:
6

8
4

,1
2

6
$

  
  
  
 



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

2
,9

4
7

2
,3

4
5

3
,1

8
9

2
,1

1
0

3
,7

5
0

4
,0

1
6

3
,6

1
7

3
,5

1
0

2
,5

8
5

2
,7

8
8

2
,6

3
6

2
,5

4
7

3
,2

9
2

2
,6

2
3

3
,7

6
8

3
,6

3
8

4
,0

7
4

4
,4

1
7

3
,5

2
6

2,
00

0

2,
25

0

2,
50

0

2,
75

0

3,
00

0

3,
25

0

3,
50

0

3,
75

0

4,
00

0

4,
25

0

4,
50

0

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

A
p

ri
l

M
ay

Ju
n

e
Ju

ly
A

u
g

Se
p

t
O

ct
N

o
v

D
ec

O
ve

rw
ei

gh
t/

O
ve

rs
iz

ed
 P

er
m

it
 C

o
u

n
t 

2
0

2
0

 -
2

0
2

1
 M

o
n

th
ly

 C
o

m
p

ar
is

o
n

2
0

2
0

2
0

2
1

1
5

N
o

te
s:

1
.

Th
e

 p
e

rm
it
 c

o
u

n
t 

fo
r 

2
0

2
0

 (
3

6
,0

4
0

) 
e

n
d

e
d

 w
it
h

 a
 +

6
.7

%
 i
n

c
re

a
se

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 2

0
1
9
 (

3
3
,7

9
0
).

 

2
.

F
o

r 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
2

0
2

1
, 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l 
m

o
n

th
ly

 p
e

rm
it
 c

o
u

n
t 

o
f 
3

,5
2

6
 r

e
p

re
se

n
ts

 a
n

 -
2

.5
%

 d
e

c
re

a
se

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

sa
m

e
 m

o
n

th
 i
n

 2
0

2
0

. 

-2
.5

%
 

(N
o

te
 2

)



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t

1
6

S
o

u
rc

e
: 
M

c
G

ra
w

 H
il
l 
C

o
n

st
ru

c
ti
o

n
 E

N
R


C

O
N

S
TR

. 
E

C
O

N
O

M
IC

S
A

U
G

2
0
2
1

C
E

1
.0

%

1
.5

%

2
.0

%

2
.5

%

3
.0

%

3
.5

%

4
.0

%

4
.5

%

5
.0

%

5
.5

%

6
.0

%

6
.5

%

7
.0

%

7
.5

%

8
.0

%

2
0
1

5
2
0
1

6
2
0
1

7
2
0
1

8
2
0
1

9
2
0
2

0
2
0
2

1

% CHANGE

Y
E
A

R

C
o

n
st

ru
c

ti
o

n
 C

o
st

 I
n

d
e

x
 (

C
C

I)
 C

h
a

n
g

e
 (

%
)

Y
e

a
r-

to
-Y

e
a

r 
fo

r 
th

e
 m

o
n

th
 o

f 
J
u

ly

C
o

st
s 

In
c

re
a

se
d

 

+
8
.8

%
 s

in
c

e
 

A
u

g
 2

0
2
0



h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

c
rm

a
.n

e
t


C

O
N

S
TR

. 
E

C
O

N
O

M
IC

S
A

U
G

2
0
2
1

C
E



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



Item 1B 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

 BOARD OF DIRECTORS    X AGENDA ITEM          1B 
PLANNING COMMITTEE   DATE SUBMITTED    08/13/21 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING DATE   08/24/21 
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 

1. Agenda Item:  REPORT ON 365 TOLLWAY PROJECT FINANCING ACTIVITIES.

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No

Report on 365 Tollway Project Financing Activities – Richard Ramirez, Hilltop Securities.

3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas
Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy

4. Budgeted:  Yes   No     X   N/A 

5. Staff Recommendation: Report only.

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:   Approved  Disapproved       X   None 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved        Disapproved       X   None 

8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:   Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:   Approved    Disapproved       X   None 

11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved  Disapproved    X   None 

12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved       Disapproved        X   None 

13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:      Approved  Disapproved        X   None 



Item 2A 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                     2A                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           08/12/21                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        08/24/21  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING HELD JULY 27, 2021.  
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and Approval of Minutes for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Board 

of Directors Regular Meeting held July 27, 2021.        
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve the minutes for the Board of Director’s Regular  

Meeting held July 27, 2021, as presented.          
 
6. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Finance Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved       _   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   _   Approved          Disapproved       X_   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X_  None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X_  None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:  X    Approved          Disapproved        _  None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



HCRMA Minutes – July 27, 2021 1  

 
STATE OF TEXAS 
COUNTY OF HIDALGO 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
 
The Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Board of Directors convened for a Workshop and Regular Meeting on 
Tuesday, July 27, 2021, at 5:30 pm at the Pharr City Hall, 2nd Floor City Commission Chambers, 118 S. Cage, Blvd, Pharr, 
TX 78577, with the following participating: 

 
Board Members:   S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 
    Alonzo Cantu, Director 

Paul Moxley, Director 
Frank Pardo, Director 

   Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Secretary/Treasurer 
   Joaquin Spamer, Director (Telephone) 
 

         Absent:                     Forrest Runnels, Vice-Chairman 
   

                          Staff:  Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director  
    Ramon Navarro, Chief Construction Engineer  

Eric Davila, Chief Development Engineer  
Celia Gaona, Chief Auditor/Compliance Officer 
Jose Castillo, Chief Financial Officer 
Maria Alaniz, Administrative Assistant III 

    Richard Cantu, Law Office of Richard Cantu, Legal Counsel 
    Richard Ramirez, Hilltop Securities, Financial Advisor 
       
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
Chairman Deanda led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
INVOCATION 
 
Ms. Gaona led the Invocation. 
 
CALL TO ORDER OF A WORKSHOP at 5:32 p.m. 

 
1. Review of Quarterly Investment Report for Period Ending June 30, 2021 – HCRMA Staff.  

Mr. Pilar Rodriguez reviewed the Quarterly Investment Report for Period Ending June 30, 2021. 
 

ADJOURNMENT OF WORKSHOP 
 
CALL TO ORDER FOR REGULAR MEETING AND ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
Chairman Deanda called the Regular Meeting to order at 5:36 p.m.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

No Comments. 
 
 
 

 



HCRMA Minutes – July 27, 2021 2  

1. REPORTS 
 

A. Report on Program Manager Activity for 365 Tollway Project and IBTC Environmental Clearance Document – 
Eric Davila, HCRMA.  
Mr. Eric Davila reported on Program Manager Activity for 365 Tollway Project and IBTC Environmental 
Clearance Document. No action taken. 
 

B. Report on 365 Tollway Project Financing Activities – Richard Ramirez, Hilltop Securities.  
Mr. Richard Ramirez, Hilltop Securities, reported on the 365 Tollway Project Financing Activities. No action 
taken. 
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA.  

Motion by Alonzo Cantu, with a second by Ezequiel Reyna, to approve the Consent Agenda.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
A. Approval of Minutes for the Regular Meeting held June 22, 2021 and Special Board Meeting held July 5, 2021. 

Approved the Minutes for the Regular Meeting held June 22, 2021 and Special Board Meeting held July 5, 2021. 
 

B. Approval of Project & General Expense Report for the period from June 5, 2021 to July 7, 2021.  
Approved the Project & General Expense Report for the period from June 5, 2021 to July 7, 2021. 

  
C. Approval of Financial Reports for June 2021.  

Approved the Financial Reports for June 2021. 
 

D. Approval of Quarterly Investment Report for the Period Ending June 30, 2021.  
Approved the Quarterly Investment Report for the period ending June 30, 2021. 
 

3. REGULAR AGENDA 
 

A. Resolution 2021 - 29 – Approval of One Year Extension to the Professional Service Agreement with Hilltop 
Securities (First Southwest) to provide Financial Advisory Services to the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority.   
Motion by Alonzo Cantu, with a second by Ezequiel Reyna, to approve Resolution 2021-29— Approval of 
One Year Extension to the Professional Service Agreement with Hilltop Securities (First Southwest) to 
provide Financial Advisory Services to the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  
 

B. Resolution 2021 – 30 – Award of contract for the purchase of an emergency power generator for the Hidalgo 
County Regional Mobility Authority administrative facility from Waukesha-Pearce Industries utilizing 
BUYBOARD contract number 597-19.   
Motion by Ezequiel Reyna, with a second by Frank Pardo, to approve Resolution 2021 -30 – Award of 
contract for the purchase of an emergency power generator for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority administrative facility from Waukesha-Pearce Industries utilizing BUYBOARD contract number 
597-19 in the amount of $47,543.00. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

C. Resolution 2021-31 – Approval of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority’s Quality Assurance Program.   
Motion by Paul Moxley, with a second by Frank Pardo, to approve Resolution 2021-31 – Approval of Hidalgo 
County Regional Mobility Authority’s Quality Assurance Program.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

4. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
 

A. None. 



HCRMA Minutes – July 27, 2021 3  

 
 

5.  TABLED ITEMS 
 

Motion by Ezequiel Reyna, with a second by Frank Pardo, to remove Resolution 2020-23 from the table. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
A. Resolution 2021-23 – Approval of Work Authorization 6 to the Professional Services Agreement with L&G 

Engineering for re-design effort pertaining to HCID 2 Access. 
Motion by Ezequiel Reyna, with a second by Frank Pardo, to approve Resolution 2021 -23 – Approval of 
Work Authorization 6 to the Professional Services Agreement with L&G Engineering for re-design effort 
pertaining to HCID 2 Access in the amount of $440,070.95. Motion passed with four voting in favor and one 
against (Cantu). The Chair did not vote. 
 

Motion by Ezequiel Reyna, with a second by Frank Pardo, to remove Resolution 2020-24 from the table. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
B. Resolution 2021 -24 – Approval of Contract Amendment 2 to the Professional Service Agreement with L&G 

Engineering to increase the maximum payable amount for Work Authorization Number 6. 
Motion by Paul Moxley, with a second by Ezequiel Reyna, to approve Resolution 2021 -24 – Approval of 
Contract Amendment 2 to the Professional Service Agreement with L&G Engineering to increase the 
maximum payable amount for Work Authorization Number 6 for a revised maximum payable amount of 
$5,937,334.87. Motion passed with four voting in favor and one against (Cantu). The Chair did not vote. 

 
6. EXECUTIVE SESSION, CHAPTER 551, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, SECTION 551.071 (CONSULTATION WITH 

ATTORNEY), SECTION 551.072 (DELIBERATION OF REAL PROPERTY) AND SECTION 551.074 (PERSONNEL 
MATTERS)  
 

Motion by Ezequiel Reyna, with a second by Frank Pardo, to enter into Executive Session to consult with the Board 
Attorney on legal issues pertaining to Items 6A under Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code at 6:38 pm. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Motion by Ezequiel Reyna, with a second by Frank Pardo, to reconvene the regular board meeting at 6:55 pm. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

A. Consultation with Attorney on personnel matters related annual evaluation of the Executive Director 
(551.074 T.G.C.) 
No action taken 
 

B. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to an Interlocal Cooperative Agreement with the City 
of Mission to provide Right of Way Acquisition Services (Section 551.071 T. G.C.) 
No action taken. 
 

C. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the Texas Department of Transportation State 
Infrastructure Bank Loan for the 365 Tollway Project (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 
No action taken. 
 

D. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to Professional Service Agreements for Engineering, 
Surveying and Environmental Services (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 
No action taken.  
 

E. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the acquisition of real property for various parcels for 
the 365 Tollway Project and International Bridge Trade Corridor Project (Sections 551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.). 



HCRMA Minutes – July 27, 2021 4  

No action taken.  
 

F. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the acquisition, including the use of Eminent Domain, 
for property required to complete the project alignments of the 365 Tollway Project (Sections 551.071 and 
551.072 T.G.C.). 
No action taken.  
 

G. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the Environmental Clearance Document for the 
International Bridge Trade Corridor Project (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 
No action taken. 
 

H. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the issuance of one or more Series of Hidalgo County 
Regional Mobility Authority bonds and related agreements and provisions relating to the subject (Section 
551.071 T.G.C.).                                                                                                                           
No action taken. 
 

I. Consultation with Attorney on personnel matters related to the COVID-19 pandemic (Section 551.074 
T.G.C.).                                                                                                                           
No action taken. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no other business to come before the Board of Directors, motion by Ezequiel Reyna, with a second by 
Frank Pardo, to adjourn the meeting at 6:13 p.m.  
 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
S. David Deanda, Jr, Chairman 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Secretary/Treasurer 

 



Item 2B 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                   2B                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           08/17/21                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        08/24/21  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  APPROVAL OF PROJECT AND GENERAL EXPENSE REPORT FROM JULY 

8, 2021 TO AUGUST 6, 2021     _     
 

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of project and general expense report for the period from   

July 8, 2021 to August 6, 2021          
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:       X   Yes           No          N/A  Funding Source:  VRF Bond 
 
     
 General Account                  $ 138,108.30  

   Disbursement Account                  $ 102,551.95 
 VRF Series 2020A                  $        656.25 

 Total Project Expenses for Reporting Period                $    241,316.50  
       
      Fund Balance after Expenses   $ 8,863,158.62  
  
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve the project and general expense report for the  

July 8, 2021 to August 6, 2021, as presented.         
 
6. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Finance Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9 Chief Auditor’s Recommendation: _     Approved          Disapproved       X_   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
 
 
 



 
 

   

Memorandum 
To: S. David Deanda Jr., Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: August 17, 2021 

Re: Expense Report for the Period from July 8, 2021 to August 6, 2021 

Attached is the expense report for the period commencing on July 8, 2021 to August 6, 2021. 
 
Expenses for the General Account total $138,108.30, Disbursement Account total $102,551.95 and the 
VRF Series 2020A Account is $656.26. The aggregate expense for the reporting period is $241,316.50. 
  
Based on review by this office, approval of expenses for the reporting period is recommended in 
the aggregate amount of $241,316.50. 
 
This leaves a fund balance (all funds) after expenses of $8,863,158.62. 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise.  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Plains Capital 41 Make Check Payable to Date Work Performed Amount

Wages & Benefits City of Pharr July 2021 106,989.71$

Office Depot July 179.19$

Office Depot July 69.99$

A Fast Delivery, LLC July 2021 148.00$

Copy Zone July 2021 660.78$

Bracewell, LLP July 2021 3,270.25$

Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP July 2021 150.00$

Pathfinder Public Affairs July 2021 10,000.00$

Accounting Fees City of Pharr July 2021 205.00$

Rent City of Pharr August 2021 4,480.00$

City of Pharr July 2021 4,305.00$

City of Pharr 8/1/21 8/31/21 655.00$

Xerox 8/1/2021 8/31/2021 194.05$

Professional Services Pena Designs July 20201 200.00$

HilltopSecurities, Inc. June 2021 2,500.00$

Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc. 8/1/2021 7/31/2022 1,500.00$

San Miguel Lawn Care Services 8/12/2021 465.00$

Credit Card Services 7/04/2021 8/02/2021 225.00$

Credit Card Services 7/04/2021 8/02/2021 1,195.01$

Credit Card Services 7/04/2021 8/02/2021 716.32$

138,108.30$

Wilmington Trust 45/Capital Projects

Legal Fees Bracewell, LLP July 2021 13,720.00$

Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP July 2021 4,312.50$

Blanton & Associates, Inc. 4/1/21 07/31/21 3,941.94$

Blanton & Associates, Inc. 7/1/21 7/31/21 2,481.31$

HDR Engineering, Inc. 6/27/21 7/31/21 12,862.09$

HDR Engineering, Inc. 6/27/21 7/31/21 14,055.00$

HDR Engineering, Inc. 6/27/21 7/31/21 9,397.04$

HDR Engineering, Inc. 6/24/21 7/31/21 39,714.07$

Top Cut Lawn Care Inc. 8/3/2021 648.00$

San Miguel Lawn Care Services 8/14/2021 625.00$

San Miguel Lawn Care Services 8/09/2021 795.00$

102,551.95$

Wilmington Trust 46/VRF Series 2020A

Sendero Acquisition, LP Thru 7/31/2021 656.25$

656.25$

Sub Total General 41 138,108.30$

Sub Total Projects 45 102,551.95$

Sub Total 46 656.25$

Total 241,316.50$

Approved: Recommend Approval:

S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director

Approved: Date: 8/24/2021

Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Secretary/Treasurer

July 8 - Aug 6

August 2021 

Page 1 of 1



Item 2C 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

 BOARD OF DIRECTORS    X AGENDA ITEM          2C 
PLANNING COMMITTEE   DATE SUBMITTED   08/13/21 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING DATE  08/24/21 
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 

1. Agenda Item:   APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE MONTH OF JULY 2021.

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No

Consideration and approval of financial report for the month of July 2021.

3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas
Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy

4. Budgeted:  Yes   No     X   N/A 

Funding Source:

5. Staff Recommendation:    Motion to approve the Financial Report for the month of
July 2021, as presented.

6. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:   Approved    Disapproved       X   None 

7. Finance Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved    Disapproved       X   None 

8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:   Approved      Disapproved       X   None 

9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation: _    Approved  Disapproved       X   None 

10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:   X   Approved  Disapproved    None 

11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved  Disapproved       X   None 

12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved         Disapproved       X   None 

13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved    Disapproved          None 







































 

 

 

 

 

THIS ITEM WILL BE 

SENT UNDER 

SEPERATE COVER 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



Item 3A 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

      X           AGENDA ITEM                 3A    
DATE SUBMITTED        08/11/2021 
MEETING DATE     08/24/2021 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
PLANNING COMMITTEE   
FINANCE COMMITTEE 
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 

1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2021-32 – APPROVAL OF WORK AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 9
TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH C&M ASSOCIATES, INC. FOR A
TRAFFIC AND REVENUE BRING-DOWN LETTER FOR THE 365 TOLLWAY PROJECT
FINANCING.

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No

For Traffic & Revenue Bring-Down letter for the 365 Tollway Project financing.________

3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas
Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy

4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 

5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2021-32 Approval of Work
Authorization Number 9 to the Professional Service Agreement with C&M Associates, Inc.
for a Traffic and Revenue Bring-Down Letter for the 365 Tollway Project Financing, as
presented to the Board of Directors on August 24, 2021.     .

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X_  None 

11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None 

12. Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved    Disapproved        X   None 

13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:    x   Approved          Disapproved           None 



 SUMMARY 

Amount   _________________ 

BRIEF BACKGROUND: 

Staff is recommending approval of this request in the amount of $

Environmental _____________________________________ 

Engineering _______________________________________ 

Geo-Technical _____________________________________ 

Surveying ________________________________________ 

Work Authorization # _______

Resolution No. Description Amount

Goal and Options: 

Approved Amendments:

✔

     

C&M Associates, Inc         

                                    

                                   

2021-32

2017-59

$ 35,598.24

2017-88

$ 18,173.08

$ 10,096.16

2017-96 $ 18,375.00

2018-03

2018-23 WA No. 3 T&R w/ Tx DOT PP Procedures

WA No. 1

WA No. 2

SA No. 1 to WA No. 2

SA No. 2 to WA No. 2 $ 18,375.00

$ 35,019.23

$ 491,379.59

WA No. 9 T&R Bring-Down Ltr-365 Toll2021-32

$ 591,418.06

To provide a Traffic and Revenue Bring Down letter for the 365 Tollway Project financing. 

$ 35,598.24

9

$ 35,598.24

$ 627,016.30

E. Davila, Develop Eng



2018-64 WA No. 4  Traffic & Revenue 2018 & Bringdown $ 49,223.08

2018-69 $ 18,375.00

2019-08 $ 17,250.00

2019-22

2019-35

$ 15,896.71

$ 390,634.80

WA No. 5 T&R Analysis Scenario I - 365 

WA No. 6 T&R Analysis Scenarios J&K - 365

WA No. 7 IBTC Traffic Projection Update

WA No. 8 Investment Grade T&R Study 365 Toll

 

 

$ 491,379.59

2021-32



 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2021-32 

APPROVAL OF WORK AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 9 THE PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH C&M ASSOCIATES FOR A TRAFFIC AND 
REVENUE BRING-DOWN LETTER FOR THE 365 TOLLWAY PROJECT 
FINANCING  

 
 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 24th day of August 2021 by the Board of Directors 
of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at a regular meeting. 

 
WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the "Authority"), 

acting through its Board of Directors (the "Board"), is a regional mobility authority created 
pursuant to Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the "Act"); 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Act to address mobility issues in 

and around Hidalgo County; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2017-59 – Approval of Work 
Authorization Number 1 to the Professional Services Agreement with C&M Associates, Inc. to 
provide updated ESALS for the Environmental Clearance Document for the International Bridge 
Trade Corridor Project. in the amount of $18,173.08; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2017-88 – Approval of Work 

Authorization Number 2 with C&M Associates to provide a scenario planning for the 365 Tollway 
Project in the amount of $10,096.16; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2017-96 – Approval of Supplemental 

Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 2 with C&M Associates to provide a scenario planning 
for the 365 Tollway Project in the amount of $18,375.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2018-03 – Approval of 

Supplemental Number 2 to Work Authorization Number 2 the Professional Service Agreement 
with C&M Associates to provide a Traffic & Revenue analysis of Scenario “G” for the 365 
Tollway Project in the amount of $18,375.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2018-23 – Approval of Work 

Authorization Number 3 to the Professional Services Agreement with C&M Associates, Inc. 
to provide International Bridge Trade Corridor Traffic Projections utilizing Texas Department 
of Transportation Planning and Programming (TxDOT TPP) Procedures in the amount of 
$35,019.23; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2018-64 Approval of Work 

Authorization Number 4 with C&M Associates, Inc. to provide the 365 Tollway Project – 
Traffic and Revenue Update (2018) including an update to the Bringdown Letter in the amount 
of $49,223.08; and    

 
 
 
 



 
WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2018-69 Approval of Work 

Authorization Number 5 to the Professional Service Agreement with  C&M Associates, Inc. 
for traffic & revenue analysis of scenario “I” for the 365 Tollway Project, in the amount of 
$18,375.00; and     

 
WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2018-70 Approval of Contract 

Amendment Number 6 to the Professional Service Agreement with  C&M Associates to 
increase the maximum payable amount by $18,375.00 for Work Authorization Number 5 for a 
revised maximum payable amount of $167,363.55; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2019-08 Approval of Work 

Authorization Number 6 to the Professional Service Agreement with C&M Associates, Inc. for 
traffic and revenue analysis of scenarios “J” & “K” for the 365 Tollway rescope and rebid, in 
the amount of $17,250.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2019-09 Approval of Contract 

Amendment Number 7 with C&M Associates to increase the maximum payable amount by 
$17,250.00 for Work Authorization Number 6 for a revised maximum payable amount of 
$184,886.55; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2019-22 Approval of Work 
Authorization Number 7 to the Professional Services Agreement with C&M Associates for 
IBTC Traffic Projection Update using the latest update of the Lower Rio Grande (LRGV) 
Travel Demand Model (TDM) for 2019 in the amount of $15,896.71; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2019-23 Contract Amendment 8 to 

the Professional Service Agreement with C&M Associates, Inc. to increase the maximum 
payable amount for Work Authorization Number 7 in the amount of $15,896.71 for a revised 
maximum payable amount of $200,783.26; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2019-35 Approval of Work 

Authorization Number 8 to the Professional Services Agreement with C&M Associates for the 
Investment Grade Traffic and Revenue Study for the 365 Tollway Project in the amount of 
$390,634.80; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2019-36 Contract Amendment 9 to 

the Professional Service Agreement with C&M Associates, Inc. to increase the maximum 
payable amount for Work Authorization Number 8 in the amount of $390,634.80 for a revised 
maximum payable amount of $591,418.06; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Authority finds it necessary to approve Resolution 2021-32 

Approval of Work Authorization Number 9 to the Professional Service Agreement with C&M 
Associates, Inc. for a Traffic and Revenue Bring-Down letter for the 365 Tollway project 
financing in the amount of $35,598.24.  

 
 

 
 

 



NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY THAT: 

 
Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 

restated. 
 

Section 2. The Board hereby approves Work Authorization Number 9 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with C&M Associates, Inc., in the amount of $35,598.24 
hereto attached as Exhibit A.  

 
Section 3.     The Board authorizes the Executive Director to execute Work Authorization 

Number 9 to the Professional Services Agreement with C&M Associates as 
approved. 

 

***** 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PASSED  AND  APPROVED  AS  TO  BE  EFFECTIVE  IMMEDIATELY  BY  THE 
BOARD  OF DIRECTORS  OF THE  HIDALGO  COUNTY  REGIONAL  MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY AT A REGULAR MEETING, duly posted and noticed, on the 24th day of  
August 2021, at which meeting a quorum was present. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

________________________________________ 
S. David Deanda,  Jr., Chairman 

 
 

 
 
 
 

__________________________________________ 
Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Secretary/Treasurer 

 



 
 

Exhibit A 
 

Work 
Authorization   

Number 9  
to  

Professional   Service Agreement 
with 
C&M 

Associates, Inc. 
for 

Traffic 
Engineering 

Services for the  
365 TOLL 
Project 



 
Contract  

 
 

Hidalgo County  
Regional Mobility Authority  

(HCRMA)(Authority) 
 

Investment Grade Traffic  
and Revenue Projections for the 

365 Tollway Project  

. 
 

 

 

 

Work Authorization No. 9

August 24, 2021 

C&M ASSOCIATES, INC. 



Work Authorization No. 9 to 
HCRMA Systemwide Traffic and Revenue Services Agreement for C&M Associates, Inc. for 

HCRMA 0000 Systemwide Projects including the 0010 IBTC and 0030 365 TOLL 
 Page 1 

 

WORK AUTHORIZATION NO.  __9__ 
AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 

 
THIS WORK AUTHORIZATION is made pursuant to the terms and conditions of “Article V of that certain 
Professional Services Agreement for Engineering Services” (the Agreement) entered into by and between the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (Authority), and C&M Associates, Inc. (the Engineer). 

 
PART I.   The Engineer will perform Engineering/Design services generally described as in accordance with the 
project description attached hereto and made a part of this Work Authorization.  The responsibilities of the Authority 
and the Engineer as well as the work schedule are further detailed in Exhibits A, B and C which are attached hereto 
and made a part of the Work Authorization.  
 
PART II.   The maximum amount payable under this Work Authorization is $35,598.24 and the method of payment 
is Lump Sum as set forth in Attachment E of the Agreement.  This amount is based upon fees set forth in Attachment 
E, Fee Schedule, of the Agreement and the Engineer’s estimated Work Authorization costs included in Exhibit D, 
Fee Schedule, which is attached and made a part of this Work Authorization. 
 
PART III.   Payment to the Engineer for the services established under this Work Authorization shall be made in 
accordance with Articles III thru V of the Agreement, and Attachment A, Section 1. 
 
PART IV.   This Work Authorization shall become effective on the date of final acceptance of the parties hereto and 
shall terminate on May 31, 2022, unless extended by a supplemental Work Authorization as provided in Attachment 
A, Section 1. 
 
PART V.   This Work Authorization does not waive the parties' responsibilities and obligations provided under 
“Article V of that certain Professional Services Agreement for HCRMA Systemwide Traffic and Revenue Services 
for HCRMA Systemwide Projects including the 0010 IBTC and 0030 365 TOLL.” 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Work Authorization is executed in duplicate counterparts and hereby accepted 
and acknowledged below. 
 
       THE ENGINEER                  THE AUTHORITY  
     
_______________________________   ______________________________ 
       (Signature)       (Signature) 
_ Carlos M. Contreras       _________Pilar Rodriguez________ 
  (Printed Name)             (Printed Name) 
_________President                   ________Executive Director_______ 
        (Title)           (Title) 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
        (Date)           (Date) 
 
LIST OF EXHIBITS 
Exhibit A  Services to be provided by the Authority 
Exhibit B  Services to be provided by the Engineer 
Exhibit C  Work Schedule 
Exhibit D  Fee Schedule/Budget 
Exhibit H-2  Subprovider Monitoring System Commitment Agreement 



Work Authorization No. 9 to 
HCRMA Systemwide Traffic and Revenue Services Agreement for C&M Associates, Inc. for 

HCRMA 0000 Systemwide Projects including the 0010 IBTC and 0030 365 TOLL 
Exhibit A – Page 1 

 

EXHIBIT A 

SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE AUTHORITY 

 

The AUTHORITY will provide the following general items. 

1. Authorization to begin work. 

2. Timely payment for work performed by the Engineer and accepted by the AUTHORITY on a 
monthly basis. 

3. Assistance to the Engineer, as necessary, to obtain the required data and information from 
other local, regional, State and Federal agencies that the Engineer cannot easily obtain. 

4. Provide any available relevant data the AUTHORITY may have on file concerning the 
project. 

5. Review and approve the Engineer’s progress schedule with milestone activities and/or 
deliverables identified. 

 



Work Authorization No. 9 to 
HCRMA Systemwide Traffic and Revenue Services Agreement for C&M Associates, Inc. for 

HCRMA 0000 Systemwide Projects including the 0010 IBTC and 0030 365 TOLL 
Exhibit B – Page 1 

 

EXHIBIT B 
SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE ENGINEER 

 

In January 2021, C&M completed an Investment Grade Traffic and Revenue (T&R) Study for 365 TOLL. The 
proposed work will confirm the validity of the assumptions and inputs used in the Investment Grade Study 
and the potential impacts of any changes to those assumptions as well as the economic and traffic 
recoveries from the COVID-19 pandemic.  C&M will produce a Bring Down Letter to document the review 
and provide edits to the original study report as necessary for inclusion in bond documents and provide 
any traffic engineer certification as needed. C&M will also provide support to the 365 TOLL financing team. 

Task 1: Review of Socioeconomic Assumptions Used in the 2020–21 Study 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic’s impact on travel and other behaviors, C&M will review the 
socioeconomic data analysis that was part of its previous T&R study, including socioeconomic variables at 
the traffic analysis zone (TAZ) level for use in the adopted Lower Rio Grande Valley (LRGV) regional travel 
demand model (TDM). Due to continuing changes in the current situation regarding the pandemic, it is 
important for C&M to review its previous pandemic assumptions from half a year ago. It is important to 
have a clear understanding of the potential short- and long-term implications of the pandemic’s impacts 
and its effects on future developments within the study area, particularly the potential growth of the 
maquiladora, warehousing, and distribution centers in Hidalgo and Cameron Counties. 

Possible changed to forecasted variables like Consumer Price Index (CPI) and Gross Regional Product (GRP) 
of Texas or/and Hidalgo County will be documented to show potential changes in the estimated short- 
and long-term COVID-19 impacts on the economy for the study area, reflecting the changes that occurred 
in the last 6 month after finalizing the investment grade T&R study. 

Task 2: Border Crossing Update 
C&M will begin this task with a review of the previously provided border demand forecasts for 365 TOLL 
as part of the investment grade T&R study. In this process, C&M will review, analyze, and update the 
forecasts of the independent variables that changed due the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

These impacts include the extended border restrictions to essential border crossings for passenger 
vehicles and possible shifts in commodities for commercial vehicles that might impact the long- and short-
term demand forecasts of the Hidalgo County international bridges that connect to 365 TOLL. 

Task 3: T&R Forecast Review  
After carefully reviewing the possible changes to the modeling data, C&M might estimate updated daily 
T&R projections by employing the adopted LRGV TDM for the corresponding project opening year and 
horizon model years. The resulting model year will be the base for forecasting updated annual T&R figures. 
C&M will review and, if necessary, update its T&R assumptions, including future regional growth of the 
warehousing/distribution centers, revenue days, ramp-up, ETC penetration, etc. 



Work Authorization No. 9 to 
HCRMA Systemwide Traffic and Revenue Services Agreement for C&M Associates, Inc. for 

HCRMA 0000 Systemwide Projects including the 0010 IBTC and 0030 365 TOLL 
Exhibit B – Page 2 

 

Task 4: Bring Down Letter Production 
C&M deliverables will be electronically submitted to HCRMA. C&M’s Bring Down Letter to support the 
investment grade T&R study will include, at a minimum, the following:  

1. Documentation of the socioeconomic data review. 
2. Existing travel conditions and border crossing trends within Hidalgo County and Reynosa, 

Tamaulipas that have changed in the last 6 month. 
3. Discussion of the COVID-19 pandemic’s impact to travel on Hidalgo County international bridges. 
4. Documentation of any changes to T&R assumptions. 
5. Updated T&R forecasts, if necessary. 
6. Concluding remarks. 

C&M will address any comments from HCRMA staff regarding the Draft Bring Down Letter and submit a 
final version reflecting any necessary changes. 

Task 5: Support for Financing 
During the financing of the project, C&M will be available to conduct the following:  

 Presentations of C&M’s T&R Study and Bring Down Letter to Boards of Directors, policy makers 
and elected officials. 

 Presentations to financial advisor, underwriters, and bond counsel 
 Responses to peer reviews of the T&R Study and Bring Down Letter by audit consultants and 

lender’s advisors. 
 Modifications and excerptions of the T&R Study and/or Bring Down Letter for inclusion in official 

statements. 
 Preparation, due-diligence practice sessions, and coordination meetings with underwriters. 
 Face-to-face presentations, teleconferences, written Q&A sessions, and stress scenario 

development with ratings agencies Moody's, S&P, Fitch Rating, and/or DBRS. 
 Investor presentations in Hidalgo County and on-site to pension funds and other institutional 

investors. 
 Providing a guided tour of the proposed location of the facility and competing facilities for 

investors. 
 Scripting and recording of virtual roadshow presentations. 
 One-on-one sessions with investors to answer questions.  

This task will be limited to three (3) in-person meetings and five (5) on-call meetings attended by two 
C&M personnel.  
 



Work Authorization No. 9 to 
HCRMA Systemwide Traffic and Revenue Services Agreement for C&M Associates, Inc. for 

HCRMA 0000 Systemwide Projects including the 0010 IBTC and 0030 365 TOLL 
Exhibit C – Page 1 

 
 

 

EXHIBIT C 
WORK SCHEDULE 

 

This update will be finalized no later than four (4) weeks after receiving the Notice to Proceed (NTP), tentatively 

requested for August 25th  with Bring Down Letter delivery four (4) weeks later.  

 

  



Professional Engineering Services for the HCRMA

Consultant: C&M ASSOCIATES, INC.

Schedule Duration:   4 Weeks after NTP

CONSULTANT SERVICES

DESCRIPTION

Principal/Proj
ect Director

Project 
Manager

Senior 
Transportatio

n Modeler

Transportatio
n Modeler

Total
Labor Hrs. Remarks  Task

Cost 

Task 1. Review of socioeconomic assumptions 4 8 24 24 60  $                6,847.68 

Task 2. Border crossing update 4 4 8 16  $                2,420.04 

Task 3. T&R forecast review 12 24  $                4,207.56 

Task 4. Bring-down letter production 8 16 24 16 64  $                8,195.20 

Task 5. Support for financing 24 24 8 4 60  $              10,477.76 

Subtotal 40 64 88 44 200 0 32,148.24$               

HOURS TOTAL 40 64 88 44 200

LABOR RATE PER HOUR $254.38 $130.63 $110.00 $89.38

TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COSTS 10,175.20$   8,360.32$      9,680.00$      3,932.72$      32,148.24$     

% LABOR UTILIZATION FOR TOTAL PROJECT (BASED ON FEE) 31.65% 26.01% 30.11% 12.23% 100.00% CHECK

% LABOR UTILIZATION FOR TOTAL PROJECT (BASED ON HOURS) 20.00% 32.00% 44.00% 22.00% 100.00% 32,148.24$    

TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COST Unit Unit Price QTY 32,148.24$               

Socioeconomic data purchase Set 2,000.00$      1.00 2,000.00$                 

Air Ticket Round Trip/Pe 500.00$         2.00 1,000.00$                 

Transportation Per ride 50.00$           1.00 50.00$                      

Lodging Per Day 100.00$         2.00 200.00$                    

Food Per day 50.00$           4.00 200.00$                    

TOTAL DIRECT EXPENSE COST 3,450.00$                 

GRAND TOTAL 35,598.24$               

Fee Schedule/Budget for

EXHIBIT 'D'

365 T&R Bring-Down Letter

Work Authorization No.9

Traffic and Revenue Consultant
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (HCRMA)



Work Authorization No. 9 to 
HCRMA Systemwide Traffic and Revenue Services Agreement for C&M Associates, Inc. for 

HCRMA 0000 Systemwide Projects including the 0010 IBTC and 0030 365 TOLL 
Exhibit H-2– Page 1 

 
 

ATTACHMENT H-2 
Subprovider Monitoring System Commitment Agreement 

This commitment agreement is subject to the award and receipt of a signed contract from the Hidalgo County 
Regional Mobility Authority (Authority).  NOTE: Attachment H-2 is required to be attached to each contract that 
does not include work authorizations.  Attachment H-2 is required to be attached with each work authorization.  
Attachment H-2 is also required to be attached to each supplemental work authorization.  If DBE/HUB 
Subproviders are used, the form must be completed and signed.  If no DBE/HUB Subproviders are used, indicate 
with “N/A” on this line: __________ and attach with the work authorization or supplemental work authorization.   
Contract #:       02-TR32-17-02      Assigned Goal: 12.2%   Prime Provider   C&M Associates, Inc.  

Work Authorization (WA)#:       9       WA Amount:         $35,598.24              Date:          
Supplemental Work Authorization (SWA) #: _____ to WA #:                         SWA Amount:                            
Revised WA Amount:                          

Description of Work 
(List by category of work or task description.  Attach additional pages, if 
necessary.) 

Dollar Amount 
(For each category of work or task description 
shown.) 

Investment Grade T&R Projections 365 Tollway (Bringdown Letter) $35,598.24 
  $0 

Total Commitment Amount (Including all additional pages.) $0 
IMPORTANT: The signatures of the prime and the DBE/HUB and Second Tier Subprovider, if any (both DBE and Non-
DBE) and the total commitment amount must always be on the same page. 

Provider Name:  C&M Associates, Inc. 
Address:  15770 Dallas Parkway, 
VID Number: 20-1113510 
PH: 214-245-5300 & FAX:  
Email: cmcontreras@candm-associates.com  

 
Name:  Carlos M. Contreras               
(Please Print) 
Title:          President                           
 
       
Signature                             Date 

DBE/HUB Sub Provider 
Subprovider Name:   
VID Number:  
Address:  
PH:  
Email:  

 
Name:  ____________________   
(Please Print) 
Title:                            ______ 
 
       
Signature                             Date 

Second Tier Sub Provider 
Subprovider Name: 
VID Number: 
Address: 
Phone #& Fax #: 
Email: 

 
Name:       
(Please Print) 
Title:       
 
       
Signature                             Date 

VID Number is the Vendor Identification Number issued by the Comptroller.  If a firm does not have a VID Number, please 
enter the owner’s Social Security or their Federal Employee Identification Number (if incorporated). 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



Item 3B 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

      X           AGENDA ITEM                 3B    
DATE SUBMITTED        8/11/2021 
MEETING DATE     8/24/2021 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
PLANNING COMMITTEE   
FINANCE COMMITTEE 
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 

1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2021-33 – APPROVAL OF CONTRACT AMENDMENT 10 WITH
C&M ASSOCIATES, INC. TO INCREASE THE MAXIMUM PAYABLE AMOUNT FOR WORK
AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 9.

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 

For the CA 10 for the 365 Toll Project Financing. _ ____________ 

3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas
Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy

4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 

5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2021-33 of Contract Amendment 10
to the Professional Services Agreement with C&M Associates to increase the maximum
payable amount for Work Authorization Number 9, as presented to the Board of Directors
on August 24, 2021. ______________________________                 .

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X_  None 

11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:   X    Approved          Disapproved          None 

12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X_  None 

13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved        _  None 



CONTRACT AMENDMENT SUMMARY 

Amount   _________________ 

BRIEF BACKGROUND: 

Staff is recommending approval of this request in the amount of $

Environmental _____________________________________ 

Engineering _______________________________________ 

Geo-Technical _____________________________________ 

Surveying ________________________________________ 

___________

_________

Resolution No. Description Amount

Goal and Options: 

Approved Amendments:

     

✔

                    

C&M Associates, Inc.           

                                    

                                   

2021-33

$ 18,173

10

2017-58

$ 35,598.24

2017-89

$ 18,173.08

$ 10,096.16

2017-97 $ 18,375.00

2018-04

2018-24 Contract Amendment 4

Original Contract

Contract Amendment 1

Contract Amendment 2

Contract Amendment 3 $ 18,375.00

$ 35,019.23

$ 491,379.59

Contract Amendment 102021-33

$ 591,418.06

To increase the maximum payable amount for Work Authorization 9.  

$ 35,598.24

$ 35,598.24

$ 627,016.30

E. Davila, Develop Eng



2018-65 Contract Amendment 5 $ 49,223.08

2018-70 $ 18,375.00

2019-09 $ 17,250.00

2019-23

2019-36

$ 15,896.71

$ 390,634.80

Contract Amendment 6

Contract Amendment 7

Contract Amendment 8

Contract Amendment 9

$ 491,379.59

2021-33



 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2021-33 

APPROVAL OF CONTRACT AMENDMENT 10 TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 
AGREEMENT WITH C&M ASSOCIATES, INC. TO INCREASE THE MAXIMUM 
PAYABLE AMOUNT FOR WORK AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 9 

 
 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 2 4 th day of August 2021 by the Board of Directors of the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at a regular meeting. 

 
WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the "Authority"), acting 

through its Board of Directors (the "Board"), is a regional mobility authority created pursuant to 
Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the "Act"); 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Act to address mobility issues in and 

around Hidalgo County; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2017-59 – Approval of Work Authorization 
Number 1 to the Professional Services Agreement with C&M Associates, Inc. to provide updated ESALS 
for the Environmental Clearance Document for the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project. in the 
amount of $18,173.08; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2017-88 – Approval of Work Authorization 

Number 2 with C&M Associates to provide a scenario planning for the 365 Tollway Project in the amount 
of $10,096.16; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2017-96 – Approval of Supplemental Number 1 

to Work Authorization Number 2 with C&M Associates to provide a scenario planning for the 365 
Tollway Project in the amount of $18,375.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2018-03 – Approval of Supplemental 

Number 2 to Work Authorization Number 2 the Professional Service Agreement with C&M 
Associates to provide a Traffic & Revenue analysis of Scenario “G” for the 365 Tollway Project in 
the amount of $18,375.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2018-23 – Approval of Work 

Authorization Number 3 to the Professional Services Agreement with C&M Associates, Inc. to 
provide International Bridge Trade Corridor Traffic Projections utilizing Texas Department of 
Transportation Planning and Programming (TxDOT TPP) Procedures in the amount of $35,019.23; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2018-64 Approval of Work Authorization 

Number 4 with C&M Associates, Inc. to provide the 365 Tollway Project – Traffic and Revenue 
Update (2018) including an update to the Bringdown Letter in the amount of $49,223.08; and    

 
 



WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2018-69 Approval of Work Authorization 
Number 5 to the Professional Service Agreement with C&M Associates, Inc. for traffic & revenue 
analysis of scenario “I” for the 365 Tollway Project, in the amount of $18,375.00; and     

WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2018-70 Approval of Contract 
Amendment Number 6 to the Professional Service Agreement with C&M Associates to increase the 
maximum payable amount by $18,375.00 for Work Authorization Number 5 for a revised maximum 
payable amount of $167,363.55; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2019-08 Approval of Work Authorization 
Number 6 to the Professional Service Agreement with C&M Associates, Inc. for traffic and revenue 
analysis of scenarios “J” & “K” for the 365 Tollway rescope and rebid, in the amount of $17,250.00; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2019-09 Approval of Contract 
Amendment Number 7 with C&M Associates to increase the maximum payable amount by 
$17,250.00 for Work Authorization Number 6 for a revised maximum payable amount of 
$184,886.55; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2019-22 Approval of Work Authorization 
Number 7 to the Professional Services Agreement with C&M Associates for IBTC Traffic Projection 
Update using the latest update of the Lower Rio Grande (LRGV) Travel Demand Model (TDM) for 
2019 in the amount of $15,896.71; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2019-23 Contract Amendment 8 to the 
Professional Service Agreement with C&M Associates, Inc. to increase the maximum payable 
amount for Work Authorization Number 7 in the amount of $15,896.71 for a revised maximum 
payable amount of $200,783.26; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2019-35 Approval of Work Authorization 
Number 8 to the Professional Services Agreement with C&M Associates for the Investment Grade 
Traffic and Revenue Study for the 365 Tollway Project in the amount of $390,634.80; and  

WHEREAS, the Authority approved Resolution 2019-36 Contract Amendment 9 to the 
Professional Service Agreement with C&M Associates, Inc. to increase the maximum payable 
amount for Work Authorization Number 8 in the amount of $390,634.80 for a revised maximum 
payable amount of $591,418.06; and  

WHEREAS, he Authority approve  Resolution 2021-32 Approval of Work 
Authorization Number 9 to the Professional Services Agreement with C&M Associates for a 
Traffic and Revenue Bring-Down letter for the 365 Tollway Project financing in the amount 
of $35,598.24; and  



WHEREAS, the Authority finds it necessary to approve Resolution 2021-33 Contract 
Amendment 10 to the Professional Service Agreement with C&M Associates, Inc. to increase the 
maximum payable amount for Work Authorization Number 9 in the amount of $35,598.24 for a 
revised maximum payable amount of $627,016.30.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 

 
Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 

restated. 
 

Section 2. The Board hereby approves Contract Amendment Number 10 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with C&M Associates, Inc., for a revised maximum amount 
payable of $627,016.30 hereto attached as Exhibit A.  

 
Section 3.     The Board authorizes the Executive Director to execute Contract Amendment      

Number 10 to the Professional Services Agreement with C&M Associates as approved. 
 

***** 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PASSED  AND  APPROVED  AS  TO  BE  EFFECTIVE  IMMEDIATELY  BY  THE 
BOARD  OF DIRECTORS  OF THE  HIDALGO  COUNTY  REGIONAL  MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY AT A REGULAR MEETING, duly posted and noticed, on the 24th day of  
August 2021, at which meeting a quorum was present. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

________________________________________ 
S. David Deanda,  Jr., Chairman 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Secretary/Treasurer 

 



 
 

Exhibit A 
   
Contract 

Amendment 10   
to  

Professional   Service Agreement 
with 
C&M 

Associates, Inc. 
for 

Traffic 
Engineering 

Services for the  
365 TOLL 
Project 



 
Contract  

 
 

Hidalgo County  
Regional Mobility Authority  

(HCRMA)(Authority) 
 

Investment Grade Traffic  

and Revenue Projections for the 
365 Tollway Project 

 

 

Contract Amendment No. 10

August 24, 2021 

C&M ASSOCIATES, INC. 



HCRMA Systemwide Traffic and Revenue Services Agreement for C&M Associates, Inc. for 
HCRMA 0000 Systemwide Projects including the 0010 IBTC and 0030 365 TOLL 

Supplemental Agreement No.  to Professional Services Agreement
Attachment D-2 – Page 1

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. _ 10_

TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES

THIS SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO 10 TO MAIN CONTRACT is made pursuant to the terms and 
conditions of “Attachment A General Provisions, Section 6, Supplemental Agreements of that certain Professional 
Services Agreement for Engineering Services” (the Agreement) entered into by and between the Hidalgo County 
Regional Mobility Authority (Authority), and C&M Associates, Inc. (the Engineer).

The following terms and conditions of the Agreement are hereby amended as follows:

Article II Agreement Period
This Agreement becomes effective when fully executed by all parties hereto and it shall terminate at the close of 
business on December 31, 2022.

Article III Compensation 
Article III Compensation shall be amended to increase the maximum amount payable under this contract from 
$591,418.06 to $627,016.30 for a total increase of $35,598.24 due to additional scope and effort outlined in Work 
Authorization No. 9 for the “Bringdown Letter for the 365 Tollway Project T&R Report”.

This Supplemental Agreement No. 10 to the Main Contract shall become effective on the date of final execution 
of the parties hereto.  All other terms and conditions of the Agreement not hereby amended are to remain in full 
force and effect.

THE ENGINEER THE AUTHORITY

______________________________ ______________________________
(Signature) (Signature)

______________________________ Pilar Rodriguez, P.E. 
(Printed Name) (Printed Name)

______________________________ Executive Director
(Title) (Title)

______________________________ ______________________________
(Date) (Date)



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



Item 3C



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

         
AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

 
 

                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                     3C                             
PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED          08/12/2021                                                           
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE       08/24/2021  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item: RESOLUTION 2021-34 APPROVAL OF THE 365 TOLLWAY WETLAND 

MITIGATION CONSERVATION EASEMENT IN FAVOR OF THE VALLEY LAND FUND.  
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Approval of the 365 Tollway Wetland Mitigation Conservation Easement in favor of the Valley__   

Land Fund.             
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2021-34 – Approval of the 365______ 

Tollway Wetland Mitigation Conservation Easement in favor of the Valley Land Fund.  
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   _   Approved          Disapproved       X_   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
11.  Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X_  None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved        _  None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
DM-#8103809.1 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
BOARD RESOLUTION 2021- 34        

 
 
APPROVING THE 365 TOLLWAY WETLAND MITIGATION CONSERVATION 
EASEMENT IN FAVOR OF THE VALLEY LAND FUND 
 
 
THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 24th day of August, 2021 by the Board of Directors 
of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority  (the “Authority”), 
acting through its Board of Directors (the “Board”), is a regional mobility authority 
created pursuant to Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); 
 

WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Act to address mobility issues in 
and around Hidalgo County, including the development of the 365 Toll project (the 
“Project”); 

 
WHEREAS, the Project was environmentally cleared in 2015; 

 
WHEREAS, the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers issued Individual Permit No. 

SWG-2013-00175 ( the “Permit”) for the Project; 
 

WHEREAS, the Permit requires the Authority to conduct a compensatory 
wetland mitigation (the “Mitigation Plan”); 

 
WHEREAS, the Permit additionally requires that the area on which the 

Mitigation Plan is to be conducted be covered by a conservation easement held by an 
approved wildlife conservation organization in perpetuity, which easement is to be 
recorded in the real property records of Hidalgo County, Texas (the “Conservation 
Easement”);  

 
WHEREAS, the Valley Land Fund Inc., a Texas non-profit corporation, is a 

wildlife conservation organization established to preserve, enhance, and expand the 
native wildlife habitat of the Rio Grande Valley; 

 
WHEREAS, the governing body of the Valley Land Fund Inc. has or will 

approve its acceptance of the Conservation Easement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board now finds it to be in the best interest of the Authority 

to provide the open space and environmental values described in the Conservation 
Easement;  
 
   



 

 
DM-#8103809.1 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 
 
Section 1.  The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution 
as if fully restated.  
 
Section 2.  The Board hereby authorizes the Executive Director, upon 
notice of the Valley Land Fund Inc.’s authorization to accept the Conservation 
Easement, to execute the Conservation Easement, attached hereto in substantially 
final form as Exhibit A, and have the same recorded in the real property records of 
Hidalgo County, Texas.  
 

* * * 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY AT A 
REGULAR MEETING on the 24th day of August, 2021 at which meeting a quorum was 
present.  
 
 
 
 
 
        
S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 
 
 
 
 
 
        
Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Secretary / Treasurer 
 
 
 
  



 

 
DM-#8103809.1 

Exhibit A 
 

CONSERVATION EASEMENT  



Conservation Easement 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILTY AUTHORITY/VALLEY LAND FUND 

1 

NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS: IF YOU ARE A NATURAL PERSON, YOU 
MAY REMOVE OR STRIKE ANY OR ALL OF THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION 
FROM ANY INSTRUMENT THAT TRANSFERS AN INTEREST IN REAL PROPERTY 
BEFORE IT IS FILED FOR RECORD IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS: YOUR SOCIAL 
SECURITY NUMBER OR YOUR DRIVER'S LICENSE NUMBER. 
 

CONSERVATION EASEMENT 
 
STATE OF TEXAS    § 
COUNTY OF HIDALGO   § 
 

THIS CONSERVATION EASEMENT (the “Easement”) is made this ______ day of 
___________, 2021, by HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY, a 
governmental body empowered to hold an interest in real property under the laws of the 
state of Texas, acting by and through its Board of Directors (the “Board”), is a regional 
mobility authority created pursuant to Chapter 370 of the Texas Transportation Code, 
qualified to do business in the State of Texas ("Grantor' and/or Owner"), and its successors and 
assigns in favor of VALLEY LAND FUND, INC., a Texas non-profit corporation, qualified to do 
business in the State of Texas ("Grantee and/or Conservator"), and its successors and assigns. 
 

RECITALS 
  
 WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner in fee simple of the surface estate of certain real property 
located in Hidalgo County, Texas, being a tract of land more particularly described on Exhibit 
"A", attached to and incorporated herein by reference (the "Easement Area") and as shown on 
the diagram attached hereto at Exhibit “A-1”; 
 
 WHEREAS, Grantor desires to construct a shared, multi-modal road, namely the 365 
Tollway (formerly SH 365) on Grantor’s other property, (the “Project”); 

 
WHEREAS, the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (“USACE”) issued Permit No. SWG-2013-

00175 (collectively, the “Permit”) in March 2012 to allow Grantor to carry out the Project; 
 
WHEREAS, USACE, via the Permit, required Grantor to conduct compensatory mitigation 

(the “Mitigation Plan”) as a result of the Project to: (1) open farm land to wetlands; and (2) to 
preserve a portion of the natural environmental habitat on Grantor’s property; 

 
WHEREAS, the Permit required the area on which the Mitigation Plan is to be conducted 

to be covered by a conservation easement held by an approved wildlife conservation organization, 
which is easement is to be recorded in the real property records of Hidalgo County, Texas, and 
which easement is to protect the area on which the Mitigation is to be conducted in perpetuity; 

 
WHEREAS, the Grantor has designated the Easement Area as the site of the Mitigation 

Plan; 
 
WHEREAS, the purpose of this Conservation Easement includes, without limitation, one 

or more of the following: 
 
(a) retaining or protecting natural, scenic, or open-space aspects of real property; 



Conservation Easement 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILTY AUTHORITY/VALLEY LAND FUND 

2 

(b) ensuring the availability of real property for recreational, educational, or open-space 
use; 

(c) protecting natural resources; 
(d) maintaining or enhancing air and water quality;  
(e) preserving the historical, architectural, archaeological, or cultural aspects of real 

property; 
 
WHEREAS, Grantee is a wildlife conservation organization that is qualified to hold 

conservation easements; 
 
WHEREAS, the purpose of the Grantor in entering into this easement is to ensure 

compliance with the terms and conditions of the USACE permit;  
 

WHEREAS, Grantor will not seek federal income or estate tax benefits as a result of this 
conveyance other than the deduction of costs and expenses;  
 

WHEREAS, the Easement Area possesses open space and environmental values 
(collectively, "Conservation Values") of great importance to Grantor, Grantee, the people of the 
South Texas area and the people of the State of Texas; 
 

WHEREAS, Grantor intends that the Conservation Values of the Easement Area be 
preserved, improved, and maintained in perpetuity by permitting only those land uses on the 
Easement Area that are permitted by USACE and the Permit and that do not significantly interfere 
with the Conservation Values of the Easement Area; 
 

WHEREAS, the specific Conservation Values of the Easement Area are documented in 
an inventory of relevant features of the Easement Area, dated _______________, and 
incorporated herein as Exhibit “B” (the "Baseline Inventory Report"), which consists of reports, 
maps, photographs, and other documentation that the parties agree provide, collectively, an 
accurate representation of the Easement Area at the time of this grant and which is intended to 
serve as an objective information baseline for monitoring compliance with the terms of this grant;  
 

WHEREAS, Grantor further intends, as owner of the Easement Area, to convey to Grantee 
the right to preserve and protect the Conservation Values of the Easement Area in perpetuity;  

 
WHEREAS, the terms of the Permit required Grantor to protect the Conservation Values 

of the Easement Area by entering into this Easement within six (6) months following the date of 
the Permit; 

 
 
WHEREAS, Grantor desires to convey a formal conservation easement covering the 

Easement Area in order to formally comply with the terms of the Permit; 
 

WHEREAS, Grantee is a publicly supported organization pursuant to Section 509(a)(2) of 
the Internal Revenue Code and is a tax-exempt, nonprofit organization qualified under Section 
50l(c)(3) and 170(h) of the Internal Revenue Code, whose primary purpose is to preserve, 
enhance and expand the native wildlife habitat of the Rio Grande Valley through  education, land 
ownership and the creation of economic incentives for preservation;  
 

WHEREAS, the approval for the Easement was granted by the Board of the Valley Land 
Fund on ______________; and 



Conservation Easement 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILTY AUTHORITY/VALLEY LAND FUND 

3 

 
WHEREAS, Grantee agrees, by accepting the grant of this Easement, to honor the 

intentions of Grantor stated herein and to preserve and protect in perpetuity the Conservation 
Values of the Easement Area for the benefit of this generation and the generations to come. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the above and the mutual covenants, terms, 
conditions, and restrictions contained herein, and pursuant to the laws of the State of Texas and, 
in particular, Chapter 183 of the Texas Natural Resources Code, Grantor hereby voluntarily grants 
and conveys to Grantee a perpetual and assignable conservation easement, said Easement 
being on, over and across all of a certain parcel of land known as the Easement Area of the nature 
and character and to the extent hereinafter set forth. 
 

1. Purpose.  
 

(a) It is the purpose of this Easement to comply with the terms and provisions 
of the Permit, to protect the Conservation Values of the Easement Area, and to ensure 
that the Easement Area will remain undeveloped and will be perpetually preserved in its 
predominately natural, scenic, wetland, and open space condition. The Conservation 
Values protected by this Easement include the natural resource and watershed values, 
biodiversity, and relatively natural and high-quality habitat for native plants and animals 
documented in Exhibit “B”. In establishing this Easement, Grantor and Grantee will 
prevent any use of the Easement Area that will impair or interfere with the Conservation 
Values of the Easement Area or violate the terms of the Permit. Use of the Easement Area 
will be confined to those activities described and limited in Section 4 and that are 
consistent with the purpose of this Easement. 

 
(b) Grantor will not perform, nor knowingly allow others to perform, any act on 

or affecting the Easement Area that is inconsistent with the purposes of this Easement. 
Unless otherwise specified below, nothing in this Easement shall require Grantor to take 
any action to restore the condition of the Easement Area after any act of God or other 
event over which Grantor has no control. Grantor understands that nothing in this 
Easement relieves Grantor of any obligation or restriction on the use of the Easement 
Area imposed by law. 

 
2. Rights of Grantee. To accomplish the purpose of this Easement, the following 

rights are hereby conveyed to Grantee and with respect to the Easement Area; 
  

(a) To preserve and protect the Conservation Values of the Easement Area; 
 
(b) To enter upon the Easement Area at reasonable times in order to advance 

its mission through controlled educational site visits, and to monitor Grantor's compliance 
with and otherwise enforce the terms of this Easement, the Mitigation Plan, and the Permit. 
Such entry shall be upon prior written (including facsimile) and reasonable notice to 
Grantor, except when immediate entry is necessary or desirable in order to prevent, 
terminate, or mitigate a violation of this Easement, in which case Grantee will notify 
Grantor as soon as practicable, and Grantee shall not unreasonably interfere with 
Grantor's permitted use of the Easement Area; 

 
(c) To prevent any activity on or use of the Easement Area that is inconsistent 

with the purposes of this Easement and to require, pursuant to Section 6, the restoration 



Conservation Easement 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILTY AUTHORITY/VALLEY LAND FUND 

4 

of such areas or features of the Easement Area that may be damaged by any inconsistent 
activity or use;  

 
(d) To erect signs on the Easement Area, as reasonably necessary, that 

prohibit trespassing, enhance educational uses, or that identify the Easement Area as 
protected by this Easement; and 

 
(e) To inspect, plant, sample, test and survey the Easement Area to ensure 

compliance with the Easement, the Mitigation Plan, and the Permit.  
 
Furthermore, Grantor grants to Grantee the right, but not the obligation, to control, manage or 
destroy exotic non-native species or invasive species of plants and animals that threaten the 
Conservation Values of the Easement Area. In exercising this right, Grantee will consult with 
Grantor prior to implementing management activities and will comply with all the terms of this 
Easement and all applicable governmental laws and requirements including, without limitation, 
the Permit. 
 

3. Prohibited Uses. The Easement Area shall be used in a manner consistent with 
the terms and conditions of this Easement. Any activity on or use of the Easement Area 
inconsistent with the purpose of this Easement is prohibited. Grantor reserves all rights accruing 
from Landowner’s ownership of the Easement Area, including Grantor’s Reserved Rights and the 
right to engage in, or to permit or invite others to engage in, all uses of the Easement Area that 
are permitted herein or are neither expressly prohibited herein nor inconsistent with the purposes 
of this Easement. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the following activities and uses 
are expressly prohibited or limited as set forth.  
 

 (a) No subdivision. The Easement Area may not be further partitioned, divided 
or subdivided. The division, subdivision, de facto subdivision, or partition of the Easement 
Area, whether by physical, legal, or any other process, is prohibited. Grantor shall not grant 
any easements or rights of way in the Easement Area without first obtaining the written 
consent of the Grantee. 
 
 (b) No hunting. The Easement Area serves or may serve as a refuge to various 
species of game birds and other wildlife. Commercial hunting is expressly prohibited. 
Other than the permitted removal of invasive feral species, there shall be no ongoing 
predator control programs. The limited removal of non-native or invasive species is 
permitted when performed for the benefit of native species on the Easement Area.  
 
 (c) No industrial or manufacturing activities. Any industrial, commercial, or 
manufacturing activities or uses of the Easement Area, other than those specifically 
related to recreation, as permitted herein, are expressly prohibited. 
 
 (d) No excavation. Except for those rights specifically reserved by Grantor 
herein and specifically in Grantor’s Reserved Rights, there shall be no alteration of the 
surface of the land, including, without limitation, ditching, draining, filling, excavating, 
dredging, mining or drilling of sand, gravel, caliche or other materials. Surface mining is 
expressly prohibited.  
 
 (e) No destruction of habitat. Except as required to maintain, restore, replace 
or improve native vegetation on the Easement Area, and as reserved in Grantor’s 
Reserved Rights, there shall be no substantial removal, harvesting, destruction or cutting 



Conservation Easement 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILTY AUTHORITY/VALLEY LAND FUND 

5 

of trees and shrubs, or disturbance or change in the natural habitat. Grantor retains the 
right to remove dead or diseased vegetation and to maintain or remove any vegetation 
that is dangerous for the health or safety of the wildlife or the Grantor.  
 

(f) No construction. Subject to the limited provisions under Reserved Rights, 
no permanent structures may be constructed, located, placed or installed on the Easement 
Area without the prior written consent of the Grantee. However, Grantor may construct 
photography blinds so as to view, enjoy and practice low impact camping, thereby allowing 
accessibility to the interpretation of wildlife and the habitat on the Easement Area.  
 
 (g) No trash or dumping. There shall be no storage, burning or dumping of 
trash, garbage, or other unsightly or offensive material, hazardous substance, or toxic 
waste, nor any placement of underground storage tanks in, on, or under the Easement 
Area. There shall be no changing of the topography through the placing of soil or other 
substance or material such as land fill or dredging spoils, nor shall activities be conducted 
on the Easement Area or on any adjacent property owned by Grantor that could cause 
erosion or siltation on the Easement Area.  
 
 (h) No soil disturbance. Any use or activity that causes or is likely to cause 
significant soil degradation or erosion, soil compaction, or the pollution, degradation, or 
depletion of any surface or subsurface waters, or the degradation of native vegetation 
communities or any other native habitats on the Easement Area is prohibited. No 
geothermal exploration or development is permitted.  
 
 (j) No surface mining. The removal and extraction of soil, sand, gravel, rock, 
uranium or any other mineral substance by surface mining or any similar method requiring 
destruction or excavation of the surface of the land, is prohibited.  
 
 (k) Inconsistent Activities. All other activities or uses which are inconsistent 
with the protection and enhancement of the Easement Area's conservation values and not 
permitted in Grantor’s Reserved Rights are prohibited, including but not limited to, any 
activity that may operate to conflict with or invalidate USACE’s permit requirements 
 
4. Reserved Rights. Grantor reserves to itself, and its successors, and assigns, all 

rights accruing from its ownership of the Easement Area, including the right to engage in or permit 
or invite others to engage in, all uses of the Easement Area that are not expressly prohibited 
herein and are not inconsistent with the purpose of this Easement. Ownership rights include the 
right to sell, lease, or otherwise transfer the Easement Area to anyone Grantor chooses, as well 
as the right to privacy and the right to exclude any member of the public from trespassing on the 
Easement Area. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the following rights are expressly 
reserved: 
 

(a) The right to maintain, enhance, expand and improve any existing 
roadways, paths, fences, and such manmade structures currently located on the 
Easement Area (including the right to replace with substantially similar structures used for 
the same or similar purposes with written permission of the Grantee). Fences may be 
relocated or built in order to facilitate other uses permitted hereunder or to mark property 
boundary lines. In consultation with the Grantee, Grantor may open and close any existing 
roads and paths as needed.  

 



Conservation Easement 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILTY AUTHORITY/VALLEY LAND FUND 

6 

(b) The right to build minor structures  and/or install infrastructure as well as 
for other permitted uses on the Easement Area, including but not limited to water pumps 
facilities, pipes, utilities, berms, and/or other minor building structures in order to ensure 
compliance with the requirements of USACE and the Permit, and to ensure the 
maintenance, operation, ingress/egress, safety, security and/or emergency management 
of the Easement Area consistent with the purpose of this Easement. Grantor also reserves 
the right to dismantle or remove existing structures without replacing same, provided, 
however, that any improvements permitted do not materially adversely impact the 
Easement Area's Conservation Values.  The location of such structures and infrastructure 
improvements shall be shown and/or described on Exhibit “A-2”. 

 
(c) The right to manage, enhance and alter the vegetation and plant life on the 

Easement Area; including planting trees, shrubs, grasses and removing noxious or 
diseased or non-native invasive species, provided, however, that such activities are done 
with the intention of and the purpose of promoting and enhancing the Easement Area’s 
Conservation Values. Grantor may also remove natural vegetation in areas deemed by 
Grantor as non-sensitive habitat.  

 
(d) The right to conduct recreational activities, commercial or otherwise, on the 

Easement Area which are consistent with the purposes of this Easement and are in 
compliance with all applicable federal, state and local statutes and regulations, including, 
but not limited to: nature photography, wildlife viewing, bird watching, and other such 
similar activities, including the right to construct and maintain associated improvements 
sufficient to support these allowed uses on the Easement Area, including settings, driving 
and walking trails, sanitation facilities, parking, water features, feeding stations and blinds. 

 
(e) The right to control, destroy, or trap problem feral animals, such as feral 

cats, dogs or hogs, which pose a material threat to native wildlife found on the Easement 
Area, humans, and/or the Conservation Values, provided, however, such activities do not 
materially adversely impact the Conservation Values and provided further, that such 
activities are done in a manner which is consistent with accepted and recognized wildlife 
management practices for the South Texas area.  

 
(f) The right to retain any financial remuneration derived from any of the 

retained rights enumerated. 
 
5. Notice and Approval. 

 
(a) Notice of Intention to Undertake Certain Permitted Actions. In order to 

ensure that a proposed action is authorized in accordance with Section 4 of this Easement 
and to enable Grantee to ensure that any such activities are designed and will be carried 
out in a manner not inconsistent with the purposes of this Easement, the Grantor shall 
receive prior written approval from USACE and provide advanced notice to the Grantee 
whenever the Grantor proposes to adversely impact a Conservation Value in order to 
advance another Conservation Value, to perform restoration and enhancement activities 
outside the scope of the Permit and Mitigation Plan, to alter perimeter fencing outside the 
scope of the Permit and Mitigation Plan, or to remove wildlife from the Easement Area. 
Whenever notice is required, Grantor shall notify Grantee in writing not less than thirty (30) 
days prior to the date Grantor intends to undertake the activity in question. The notice shall 
describe the proposed activity in sufficient detail to permit Grantee to make an informed 
judgment as to the proposed activity's consistency with the purpose of this Easement. In 



Conservation Easement 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILTY AUTHORITY/VALLEY LAND FUND 

7 

addition, the Grantor shall notify Grantee and USACE in writing within no less than thirty 
(30) days prior to the closing of the sale or gift of the Easement Area to any other party. 
 
 (b) It shall be the responsibility of the Grantor (i) to notify in writing not less 
than thirty (30) days after any owner or authorized lessee of mineral rights has begun any 
on-site exploration for or extraction from the Easement Area of any type of subsurface 
mineral and (ii) to also notify Grantee in writing not less than thirty (30) days after Grantor 
receives any notice of cessation of any such activity. To the extent the Grantor is legally 
able to control the activities of mineral interest owners, it shall act to incorporate into any 
lease providing access to the surface of the Easement Area a requirement for the lessee 
to reclaim any surface damage that may have resulted from any exploration for or 
extraction of subsurface minerals such that the vegetative cover of the reclaimed area is 
consistent with the purposes of this Easement.  

 
6. Grantee’s Remedies. 

 
(a) Notice of Violation: Corrective Action. If either party hereto (a “Notifying 

Party”) determines that a violation of the terms of this Easement has occurred or is 
threatened, such Notifying Party shall give written notice to the non-complying party of 
such violation and request corrective action sufficient to cure the violation and, where the 
violation involves injury to the Easement Area resulting from any use or activity 
inconsistent with the purposes of this Easement, to restore the portion of the Easement 
Area so injured to its prior condition in accordance with a plan approved by USACE. 
 

(b) Injunctive Relief. If the non-complying party fails to cure the violation within 
thirty (30) days after receipt of notice thereof from the Notifying Party, or under 
circumstances where the violation cannot reasonably be cured within a thirty (30) day 
period, fails to begin curing such violation within the thirty (30) day period, or fails to 
continue diligently to cure such violation until finally cured, the Notifying Party may, in its 
discretion but at the non-complying party's expense, undertake such actions, including 
appropriate legal proceedings, as are reasonably necessary to effect such corrections; 
and may recover the reasonable cost of such correction, including attorney’s fees. 

 
(c) Damages. To the extent permitted by Texas law, Grantee shall be entitled 

to recover damages for violation of the terms of this Easement or injury to any 
Conservation Values protected by this Easement, as well as all costs and expenses, 
including court costs and reasonable attorney’s fees, incurred in the enforcement of this 
Easement. Grantee must apply any damages recovered toward habitat protection or 
restoration of the Easement Area.  

 
(d) Scope of Relief. Grantor acknowledges that actual or threatened events of 

non-compliance under this Easement constitute immediate and irreparable harm. Grantee 
is entitled to invoke the competent jurisdiction of the courts to enforce this Easement. 
Grantor also acknowledges that Grantee’s right to monetary relief may not be adequate 
for all types of violations and that Grantee is entitled to injunctive relief described in Section 
6(b) in addition to such other relief and remedies now or hereafter existing at law or in 
equity. Further, Grantee's remedies described in this Section 6 shall be cumulative. 

 
(e) Forbearance. Forbearance by Grantee to exercise its rights under this 

Easement in the event of any breach of any term of this Easement by Grantor shall not be 
deemed or construed to be a waiver by Grantee of such term or of any subsequent breach 



Conservation Easement 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILTY AUTHORITY/VALLEY LAND FUND 

8 

of the same or any other term of this Easement or of any of Grantee's rights under this 
Easement. No delay or omission by Grantee in the exercise of any right or remedy upon 
any breach by Grantor shall impair such right or remedy or be construed as a waiver. 

 
(f) Waiver of Certain Defenses. Grantor hereby waives any defense of 

laches (i.e., undue delay), estoppel (i.e., prior statement or act that is deceptively 
inconsistent with the claim being asserted), or prescription (i.e., adverse possession) with 
respect to Grantee's rights to enforce the terms of this Easement. Grantor acknowledges 
Grantee's requirement for this provision due to the Grantee's limited presence on the 
Easement Area. 
 

(g) Acts Beyond Grantor's Control. Nothing contained in this Easement shall 
be construed to entitle Grantee to bring any action against Grantor for any injury to or 
change in the Easement Area resulting from causes beyond Grantor's control, including, 
without limitation, fire, flood, storm, or earth movement, except acts caused by Grantor’s 
lessees or invitees. 

 
(h) Third Party Enforcement. Grantor and Grantee may execute an addendum 

to this Easement by mutual consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld,  
after its creation to authorize an appropriate third party under Federal and Texas law to 
enforce the terms of this Easement. Any such addendum shall not diminish the 
enforcement rights of the Grantee. 

 
7. Access. No right of access by the general public to any portion of the Easement 

Area is conveyed by this Easement. 
 

8. Costs, Legal Requirements and Liabilities. Grantor retains all responsibilities 
related to the ownership, operation, upkeep, and maintenance of the Easement Area. Grantor 
remains solely responsible for obtaining any applicable governmental permits and approvals for 
any construction or other activity or use permitted by this Easement, and all such construction or 
other activity or use shall be undertaken in accordance with all applicable federal, state and local 
laws, regulations, and requirements. Grantor shall carry commercial general liability insurance on 
the Easement Area.. Grantor shall keep the Easement Area free of any liens.  Grantee and its 
members, directors, officers, employees, agents and contractors entering the Easement Area 
shall maintain a general liability insurance policy with a minimum limit of $1,000,000.00, as well 
as evidence of workers’ compensation and a waiver of subrogation in favor of Grantor 
 

9. Taxes. Grantor represents that no taxes, assessments, fees, or charges of any 
kind are currently due and owing against the Easement Area. Grantor shall pay before 
delinquency all taxes, assessments, fee and charges of whatever description levied on or 
assessed against the Easement Area by competent authority (collectively “taxes”), including any 
taxes imposed upon, or incurred as a result of this Easement, and shall furnish Grantee with 
satisfactory evidence of payment upon request. 
 

10. Representations and Warranties. Grantor represents and warrants that, to the best 
of its knowledge, information and belief.  
 

(a) There are not now any underground storage tanks located on the 
Easement Area, whether presently in service or closed, abandoned, or decommissioned, 
and no underground storage tanks have been removed from the Easement Area in a 



Conservation Easement 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILTY AUTHORITY/VALLEY LAND FUND 

9 

manner not in compliance with applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and 
requirements; 

 
(b) There is no pending or threatened litigation directly related to the Easement 

Area; and 
 

(c) No civil or criminal proceedings or investigations have been instigated at 
any time or are now pending, and no notices, claims, demands, or orders have been 
received, arising out of any violation or alleged violation of; or failure to comply with, any 
federal, state, or local law, regulation, or requirement applicable to the Easement Area or 
its use, nor do there exist any facts or circumstances that Grantor might reasonably expect 
to form the basis for any such proceedings, investigations, notices, claims, demands, or 
orders. 

 
11. Remediation. If, at any time, there occurs a release in, on, or about the Easement 

Area of any substance which would present an imminent or substantial endangerment to human 
health or the environment, and for which Grantor is a responsible party under applicable state or 
federal law, Grantor agrees to take all steps necessary to assure its containment and remediation. 
 

12. Control. Nothing in this Easement shall be construed as giving rise, in the absence 
of a judicial decree, to any right or ability in Grantee to exercise physical or managerial control 
over the day-to-day operations of the Easement Area, or any of Grantor's activities on the 
Easement Area, or otherwise to become an operator with respect to the Easement Area within 
the meaning of The Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 
1980, as amended ("CERCLA"); the Texas Solid Waste Disposal Act (Texas Health and Safety 
Code Annotated, Section 361); or any other federal , state or local law or regulation. 
 
 

13. Extinguishment and Condemnation. 
 

(a) Extinguishment. If circumstances arise in the future that render the 
purposes of this Easement impossible to accomplish, this Easement can only be 
terminated or extinguished, whether in whole or in part, by judicial proceedings in a court 
of competent jurisdiction. 

 
(b) Condemnation. If all or any part of the Easement Area is taken by exercise 

of the power of eminent domain or acquired by purchase in lieu of condemnation, whether 
by public, corporate, or other authority, so as to terminate this Easement, in whole or in 
part, Grantor and Grantee shall act jointly using their best reasonable efforts to realize the 
action most favored by the Grantee to the extent practicable according to the following 
hierarchy; 

 
1. Avoiding the property and preserving it in its present condition; both 

parties shall jointly take actions to formally request that the intended proceeding 
completely avoid the taking of this Easement Area; 

 
2. Minimizing and supplementing the loss to the property; if the 

Easement Area cannot be wholly preserved as a result of the intended proceeding, 
both parties shall jointly take actions to formally request the intended proceeding 
minimize its taking of this Easement Area and supplement, on at least a 1:1 
acreage basis of nearby land possessing equivalent conservation values, the loss 



Conservation Easement 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILTY AUTHORITY/VALLEY LAND FUND 

10 

of the Easement Area with a supplemental conservation easement conveyed to 
the Grantee within one year of notice of the intended proceeding; 

 
3. Mitigating the loss of the property; if options (1) and (2) are not 

acceptable to the Grantee, both parties shall jointly take actions to formally request 
that the intended proceeding mitigate its taking of this Easement Area, on at least 
a 1:1 acreage basis of nearby land possessing equivalent conservation values, by 
conveying a replacement conservation easement to the Grantee within two years 
of the intended proceedings; or 

 
4. Recover full value; if options (1) through (3) are not acceptable to 

the Grantee, both parties shall jointly take actions to recover full value of the 
interest in the Easement Area subject to the taking or in lieu purchase and all direct 
or incidental damages resulting therefrom. 

 
5. In any joint action under this section, Grantee and Grantor shall 

each be responsible for their own legal costs incurred in realizing the outcome.  
 

(c) Application of Proceeds.  Grantee shall use any proceeds received under 
the circumstances described in this Section 14 in a manner consistent with its 
conservation purposes, which are exemplified by this Easement. 

 
14. Amendments. If circumstances arise under which an amendment to or modification 

of this Easement would be appropriate, the Grantor and the Grantee are free to jointly agree to 
amend this Easement provided that the express written consent of USACE shall be required 
before any such amendment becomes effective. Furthermore, no amendment shall be allowed 
that will affect the qualification of this Easement or the status of the Conservancy under any 
applicable laws, including Chapter 183 of the Texas Natural Resources Code or Section 170(h) 
of the Internal Revenue Code. Further, any amendment shall be consistent with the Purpose of 
this Easement, shall not diminish the Conservation Values of the Property, and shall not affect 
the perpetual duration of this Conservation Easement. Any such amendment together with the 
required USACE consent shall be recorded in the Official Records of Hidalgo County, Texas, and 
at the expense of the party initiating the amendment. 
 

15. Assignment. Grantee may assign its rights and obligations under this Easement to 
any organization that is a qualified organization at the time of transfer under Section 170(h) of  the  
Internal Revenue Code (or any successor provision then applicable), and authorized to acquire 
and hold conservation easements under Chapter 183 of the Texas Natural Resources Code (or 
any successor provision then applicable ) and any applicable laws of the United States. As a 
condition of such transfer, Grantee shall (a) provide advance written notice to Grantor in 
accordance with Section 5 of this Easement, (b) require that the conservation purposes for which 
this grant is intended to advance continue to be carried out, and (c) transfer to the assignee the 
balance of easement stewardship funds allocated to this Easement. Notwithstanding any other 
provision of this Easement, Grantee covenants and agrees that it will not assign this Easement 
without the express written consent of Grantor and USACE, which consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. 
 

16. Subsequent Transfers. After the effective date of this Easement, Grantor agrees 
to incorporate the terms of this Easement in any deed or other legal instrument by which it divests 
itself of any interest in all or a portion of the Easement Area, including, without limitation, a 
leasehold interest. Grantor further agrees to give written notice to Grantee and USACE of the 



Conservation Easement 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILTY AUTHORITY/VALLEY LAND FUND 

11 

transfer of any interest at least thirty (30) days prior to the date of such transfer. The failure of 
Grantor to perform any act required by this section shall not affect the validity of this Easement or 
limit its enforceability in any way. 
  

17. Notices. Any notice, demand, request, consent, approval, or communication that 
either party desires or is required to give to the other shall be in writing and either served 
personally, sent by overnight delivery, sent by facsimile, or sent by certified first class mail, return 
receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed as follows:   

 
 To Grantor: HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
   ATTN: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 
   203 W. Newcombe Avenue 
   Pharr, Texas 78577 
 
 To Grantee: Valley Land Fund 
   ATTN: Debralee Rodriguez 
   2400 North 10th Street, Suite A 

McAllen, Texas 78501 
 
or to such other address as either party from time to time shall designate by written notice to the 
other.  
 

18. Recordation. Grantor shall record, at Grantor’s expense, within fifteen (15) days of 
the execution of this Easement by all parties hereto, this instrument in the Official Records of 
Hidalgo County, Texas. Pursuant to Section 15, any amendment to this Easement shall be 
recorded in the Official Records of Hidalgo County, Texas, and at the expense of the party 
initiating the amendment. Grantee shall receive within thirty (30) days of recording the original 
signed and recorded instrument. 

 
19. General Provisions. 
 

(a) Controlling Law. The interpretation and performance of this Easement shall 
be governed by the laws of the State of Texas. 

 
(b) Liberal Construction. Any general rule of construction to the contrary 

notwithstanding, this Easement shall be liberally construed in favor of the grant to affect 
the purposes of this Easement and the policy and purposes or Chapter 183 of the Texas 
Natural Resources Code (or any successor provision then applicable). If any provision in 
this instrument is found to be ambiguous, an interpretation consistent with the purposes 
of this Easement that would render the provision valid shall be favored over any 
interpretation that would render it invalid.  

  
(c) Severability. If any provision of the Easement, or the application thereof to 

any person or circumstance, is found to be invalid, the remainder of the provisions of this 
Easement, or the application of such provision to persons or circumstances other than 
those as to which it is found to be invalid, as the case may be, shall not be affected thereby.  

 
(d) Entire Agreement. This instrument, including Exhibits, sets forth the entire 

agreement of the parties with respect to the Easement and supersedes all prior 
discussions, negotiations, understandings, or agreements relating to the Easement, all of 



Conservation Easement 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILTY AUTHORITY/VALLEY LAND FUND 

12 

which are merged herein. No alteration or variation of this instrument shall be valid or 
binding unless contained in an amendment that complies with Section 15.  

 
(e) No Forfeiture. Nothing contained herein will result in a forfeiture or 

reversion of Grantor’s title in any respect. 
 

(f) Successors. The covenants, terms, conditions, and restrictions of this 
Easement shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of, the parties hereto and their 
respective personal representatives, heirs, successors, and assigns and shall continue as 
a servitude running in perpetuity with the Easement Area. The terms "Grantor” and 
"Grantee," wherever used herein, and any pronouns used in place thereof, shall include, 
respectively, the above-named Grantor and its personal representatives, heirs, 
successors, and assigns the above-named Grantee and its personal representatives, staff 
people, board members, successors and assigns. 

 
(g) Termination of Rights and Obligations. Unless provided otherwise in the 

transfer agreement, a party’s rights and obligations under this Easement terminate upon 
transfer of the party’s interest in the Easement of Easement Area, except that liability for 
acts or omissions occurring prior to transfer shall survive transfer.   

 
(h) Captions. The captions in this instrument have been inserted solely for 

convenience of reference and are not a part of his instrument ad shall have no effect upon 
construction or interpretation.  

 
(i) Counterparts. The parties will execute this instrument in three counterparts, 

which shall, in the aggregate, be signed by both parties; each counterpart shall be deemed 
an original instrument as against any party who has signed it. In the event of any disparity 
between the counterparts produced, the recorded counterpart shall be controlling.  

 
TO HAVE AND TO HOLD unto Grantee, its successors, and assigns forever.  

 
EXECUTED by Grantor and Grantee on the day and year first above written.  

 
      GRANTOR: 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY 

 
      By:        
       PILAR RODRIGUEZ, PE,  

Its: Executive Director 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS    § 
COUNTY OF HIDALGO   § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ______ day of __________, 2021,  
by PILAR RODRIGUEZ, in his capacity as Executive Director of HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL 
MOBILITY AUTHORITY.  
 



Conservation Easement 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILTY AUTHORITY/VALLEY LAND FUND 

13 

 
              
      Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
 
  



Conservation Easement 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILTY AUTHORITY/VALLEY LAND FUND 

14 

      GRANTEE:  
 

VALLEY LAND FUND, INC., a Texas non-profit 
corporation 
 

  
      By:        
 DEBRALEE RODRIGUEZ, Executive 

Director 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS    § 
COUNTY OF HIDALGO   § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ______ day of __________, 2021,  
by DEBRALEE RODRIGUEZ, in her capacity as Executive Director of VALLEY LAND FUND, 
INC., a Texas non-profit corporation.  
 
 
              
      Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PREPARED BY: 
 
_____________________ 
_____________________ 
_____________________ 
 
AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 
 
VALLEY LAND FUND, INC. 
Attn: Debralee Rodriguez 
2400 North 10th Street, Suite A 
McAllen, Texas 78501 
  



Conservation Easement 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILTY AUTHORITY/VALLEY LAND FUND 

15 

Exhibit “A” 
The Easement Area 

  



Conservation Easement 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILTY AUTHORITY/VALLEY LAND FUND 

16 

 
Exhibit “A-1” 

Diagram of the Easement Area 
  



Conservation Easement 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILTY AUTHORITY/VALLEY LAND FUND 

17 

Exhibit “B” 
Baseline Inventory Report 

 
 


	Notice of Agenda 
	Agenda Item 1A - Report on Program Manager Activity for 365 Tollway Project and IBTC Environmental Clearance Document 
	Agenda Item 1B - Report on 365 Tollway Project Financing Activities – Richard Ramirez, Hilltop Securities. 
	Agenda Item 2A - Approval of Minutes for the Regular Meeting held July 27, 2021
	Agenda Item 2B - Approval of Project & General Expense Report for the period from July 8, 2021 to August 6, 2021
	Agenda Item 2C - Approval of Financial Reports for July 2021
	Agenda Item 3A - Resolution 2021-32 – Approval of Work Authorization 9 to the Professional Service Agreement with C&M Associates, Inc. for a Traffic and Revenue Bring-Down Letter for the 365 Tollway Project Financing
	Agenda Item 3B - Resolution 2021-33 – Approval of Contract Amendment 10 to the Professional Service Agreement with C&M Associates to increase the maximum payable amount for Work Authorization Number 9
	Agenda Item 3C - Resolution 2021-34 – Approval of the 365 Tollway Wetland Mitigation Conservation Easement in favor of the Valley Land Fund.



